Wiltshire Council
R ————

AGENDA

Meeting: Northern Area Licensing Sub Committee

Place: West Wiltshire Room - County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge,
BA14 8JN
Date: Wednesday 15 January 2020

Time: 10.00 am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Lisa Pullin, of Democratic Services,
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713015 or email
committee@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:

Clir Allison Bucknell Clir lan Thorn
ClIr Trevor Carbin

Substitutes:

CllIr Peter Hutton



mailto:committee@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’'s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv. At the start of the meeting, the
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here .

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer,
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
questions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 2


http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=14031
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/parkingtransportandstreets/carparking/findacarpark.htm?area=Trowbridge
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s153103/Part04RulesofProcedure.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13386&path=0

AGENDA

Election of Chairman

To elect a Chairman for the meeting of the Sub Committee.
Apologies for Absence/Substitutions

To receive any apologies for absence and to note any substitutions.
Procedure for the Meeting (Pages 5 - 12)

The Chairman will explain the attached procedure for the members of the public
present.

Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman will give details of the exits to be used in the event of an
emergency.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by
the Standards Committee.

Exclusion of Press and Public

The procedure to be followed at the Hearing is governed by the Licensing Act
2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. Regulation 14 provides that hearings should
be held in public unless the Licensing Authority considers that the public interest
in excluding the public outweighs the public interest in the hearing taking place
in public. Under this principle, the Licensing Authority can exclude the public
from all or part of the hearing, as considered appropriate. In view of the
representations and evidence that has been submitted, the Sub Committee is
asked to consider whether the public should be excluded from any part of the
hearing in this instance.

Licensing Application (Pages 13 - 18)

To consider and determine an application for a review of a Premises Licence in

respect of Tale of Spice, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham, SN15 1QA made by

the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). The report of the Public Protection
Officer — Licensing is attached.

7a Appendix 1 - Current Premises Licence (Pages 19 - 26)
7b Appendix 2 - Location Plan (Pages 27 - 28)
7c Appendix 3a - Application for a Review of a Premises Licence

(Pages 29 - 34)

7d Appendix 3b - Evidence submitted by Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) (Pages 35 - 134)

Page 3



Te Appendix 4 - Letter from Licensing Officer following accompanied
Immigration visit (Pages 135 - 136)

Page 4



Wiltsidse Tourcll

e — Where everybody matters

LICENSING COMMITTEE

PROCEDURAL RULES FOR THE HEARING OF LICENSING ACT 2003
APPLICATIONS

Purpose

1.1 These rules have been prepared to facilitate proper consideration of licence
applications, made under the Licensing Act 2003, by the Licensing Committee
and its Sub Committees.

1.2 The rules set out a framework for how applications are to be heard and
explain the role of the participants at the Hearing.

Definitions

2.1 The following definitions describe the participants at and the subject matter of
a Hearing:

“Applicant” means the person who has submitted an Application for
consideration by the Committee.

“Applicant’s Premises” means premises subject to the Application.

“Applicant’s Representative” means a person attending a Hearing to assist
or represent an Applicant including a lawyer.

“Application” means an application for the Grant/Variation/Transfer/Review
and any other decision to be made by the Committee/Sub-Committee in
respect of a Licence.

“Chairperson” means the Member who is the Chairperson of the Committee
for the particular Hearing.

“Committee” means the Council’s Licensing Committee and includes any
Sub Committee of the Licensing Committee.

“Committee Lawyer” means the Council’s Lawyer (including an external
Lawyer instructed by the Council’s Legal & Democratic Services Manager)
who is present at a Hearing to advise the Chairperson and the Members.

“Committee Manager” means the Council’s Officer who is present at a
Hearing to take minutes.

“Committee Report” means the Licensing Officer’s written report to the
Committee concerning an Application, a copy of which has been previously

Page 5



made available to the Applicant or their Representative, a Responsible
Authority or their Representative or any person/s or their representative who
have made a Relevant Representation.

“Hearing” means a meeting of the Committee at which an Application is
considered.

“Licence” means a Licence which the Committee has the power or duty inter
alia to grant, transfer, suspend or revoke.

“Licensing Officer” means the Council’s Licensing Officer(s) who is/are
present at a Hearing to present reports in respect of an Application and to give
technical advice in respect of an Application to the Committee when
requested.

“Licensing Authority” the Council in whose geographical area the subject
matter of the Application relates to, and includes the Council’s Licensing
Committee, any Sub Committee of the Licensing Committee and a Licensing
Officer.

“Member” means a Member who is a Member of the Committee that is
considering an Application.

“Responsible Authority” means a person who is present at a Hearing to
make representations in respect of an Application in their capacity as
Responsible Authority and includes any person who is present to assist or
make representations on behalf of the Responsible Authority including a
Lawyer.

“Person making a Relevant Representation” means a person who is
present at a Hearing to make a representation in respect of an Application
and includes any person who is present to assist or make representations on
behalf of that person including a Lawyer.

3 Key Principles

3.1

3.2

The principles of ‘natural justice’, and Article 6 ‘Right to a Fair Trial’, which is
one of the Convention Rights in the Human Rights Act 1998, require that there
is a fair Hearing of Applications.

Natural justice is an umbrella term for the legal standards of basic fairness.
This will include that:

3.2.1 the Applicant has an opportunity to make representations before a
decision is made;

3.2.2 those making representations have an opportunity to voice their
representations before a decision is made;

Page 6



3.3

3.4

3.2.3

3.24

the Applicant has an adequate opportunity to consider and respond to
any submissions made by a Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or
any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation;

the Committee does not exclude an Applicant from a Hearing in order
to consider submissions from a Responsible Authority/Authorities
and/or any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation.

It is also fundamental that there is an orderly presentation of submissions at a
Hearing so that the relevant issues are properly understood, evidence is
tested and that oral statements made at the Hearing are accurately recorded.

Ultimately the Chairperson determines the application of these rules, having
regard to any submissions being made by those present and in particular the
Committee Lawyer.

The Hearing

4.1 The Hearing shall take place in public.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

41.1

4.1.2

The Committee may exclude the public from all or part of the Hearing
where it considers it to be in the public interest to do so and, in
accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act
1985, as amended. Public includes a party and any person assisting or
representing a party.

The Committee may require any person attending the Hearing who, in
its opinion, is behaving in a disruptive manner, to leave the Hearing
and may:

a refuse to permit them to return;

b permit them to return only on such conditions as the Committee
may specify;

c inthe event that a person is required to leave a Hearing that person
may, before the end of the Hearing, submit to the Committee in
writing any information which they would have given orally.

Prior to the Hearing commencing, the Chairperson shall advise the parties of
the procedure it proposes to follow at the Hearing.

Where a party has previously requested permission for a person(s), other than
their representative, to appear at the Hearing then the Committee shall
consider whether to permit that request.

The Committee will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in
which to exercise their rights.

This equal maximum time may have been notified in advance of the Hearing;

Where there is a number of people who have made a Relevant
Representation who have attended the Hearing to make the same

Page 7



representation then the Committee would normally require that a
spokesperson be appointed by them to make the representations on behalf of
all of those who have made a Relevant Representation.

Presentation of Submissions

5.1 The Chairperson will introduce the Application.

5.2

5.3

In the event that the Licensing Authority has given notice to a party requiring
clarification on a point(s) then that party shall respond to the points raised by
the Licensing Authority.

Submissions shall be made in the following order unless the Chairperson
directs otherwise:

5.3.1 The Licensing Officer will orally present the Committee Report and will
in particular advise the Committee as to:

5.3.2

a
b

the options available to it;
the considerations that are relevant in reaching its decision.

The Review Applicant (or the Applicant’s Representative) will orally
present its submission which may include:

a

b
c

presenting their case in accordance with the papers, which will have
been circulated with Agenda papers;

confirming key information and answer pertinent questions; and
calling witnesses in support of the Application (see paragraph 4.3).

A Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who have
made a Relevant Representation will orally present their
representations in turn which shall include:

a
b

the grounds of the representation to the Application; and

any condition(s) that the Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or
any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation would be
happy to have the Application granted subject to which would cause
the representation to be withdrawn.

The Premises Licence Holder and/or their representative will orally
present their representations which shall include;

a

The response to the representations made by the Review Applicant,
a Responsible Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who have
made a Relevant Representation; and

Whether they would be happy to accept any modifications to the
Licence as suggested by the Review Applicant, a Responsible
Authority/Authorities and/or any person/s who have made a
Relevant Representation.

Page 8



Questioning of Submissions

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

The Chairperson will regulate the order in which questions are asked by
Members.

The Chairperson and Members, voiced through the Chairperson, may
guestion any party following the completion of their submission.

The Chairperson will normally permit the Applicant, a Responsible
Authority/Authorities or any person/s who have made a Relevant
Representation to ask questions through them of the other parties.

The Chairperson may direct that questions which are not relevant to the
Application or one of the four Licensing Objectives are not formally put or
answered.

Documentation

7.1

No party shall present new documentation to the Committee at the Hearing
other than with the consent of all of the other parties. This does not preclude
the Licensing Officer from correcting errors, providing updated information or
an extract from a local map showing the Applicant’s Premises in the context
of the surrounding premises and any person/s who has made a Relevant
Representation’s premises. If any party is granted permission to present
supplementary papers at the Hearing they shall provide at least 10 copies at
the start of their submission.

Intervention

The Chairperson shall permit the following interventions at any point in the Hearing:

8.1

8.2

8.3

The Committee Lawyer to advise the Committee on issues of law, procedure
and relevant considerations on decision making. If necessary, the
Chairperson may require the Committee, the Committee Lawyer and the
Committee Manager to leave the Hearing so that advice can be given.

The Committee Manager to advise the Committee on procedure generally, or
to request that statements made are repeated for reasons of clarity and so
that they can be properly recorded.

The Licensing Officer to seek to clarify statements that have been made in
light of information held on their file.

Failure of Parties to Attend Hearing

9.1

If a party has informed the Licensing Authority that it does not intend to attend
or be represented at a Hearing, the Hearing may proceed in its absence.

Page 9



10

11

9.2 If a party has not indicated that it does not intend to attend or be represented
at a Hearing and fails to attend or be represented at the Hearing then the
Licensing Authority may:

9.2.1 where it considers it be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the
Hearing to a specified date; or

9.2.2 hold the Hearing in the party's absence.

9.3 Where the Licensing Authority holds a Hearing in the absence of a party, it
shall consider at the Hearing the application, representations or notice made
by that party.

Closing Submissions

10.1 The Chairperson shall allow first, the Responsible Authority/Authorities and
any person/s who have made a Relevant Representation to make a closing
oral submission(s) and secondly invite the Applicant or the Applicant’s
Representative an opportunity to make an oral closing submission in support
of the Application.

Decision

11.1 The Committee, the Committee Lawyer and the Committee Manager, shall
retire so that the decision may be considered in private, and to consider any
legal issues raised by the Members.

11.2 The decision, and reasons for the decision, of the Committee shall be
communicated orally by the Chairperson to the parties after the Committee
has deliberated in private on the Application.

11.3 Written reasons shall be provided soon after the deliberations of the
Application and in any event within the statutory time limits.

Page 10



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Review Hearing Procedure Summary

The Democratic Services Officer will request nominations for a Chairman for the
Hearing.

The Chairperson welcomes all those present and introduces the Application.

The Chairperson invites the Sub Committee Members, Council Officers, the Review
Applicant and/or their representative, any Responsible Authorities and/or any person
who has made a Relevant Representation and the Premises Licence Holder and/or
their representative to introduce themselves.

The Chairperson outlines the Hearing Procedure.

The Licensing Officer presents the Committee Report and outlines the application.

The Review Applicant and/or their representative address the Sub Committee to
present their case.

Questions to the Review Applicant by Members of the Sub Committee, any
Responsible Authorities and/or any person’s who have made a Relevant
Representation and the Premises Licence Holder.

Responsible Authorities and/or any person/s who have made a Relevant
Representation address the Sub Committee.

Questions to any of the Responsible Authorities and/or any person’s who have made a
Relevant Representation by Members of the Sub Committee, the Review Applicant and
the Premises Licence Holder.

The Premises Licence Holder and/or their representative address the Sub Committee to
present their case.

Questions to the Premises Licence Holder by Members of the Sub Committee, any
Responsible Authorities and/or any person/s who have made a Relevant
Representation and the Review Applicant.

Summing up by the Responsible Authorities and/or any person’s who have made
Relevant Representations.

Summing up by the Premises Licence Holder.
Summing up by the Review Applicant.

The Sub Committee retires with the Committee Lawyer and Committee Manager to
consider its decision.

The Sub Committee returns and the Lawyer gives a summary of any legal advice that
may have been given to the Sub Committee.

The Chairperson either gives the decision with reasons, or advises that it will be
released in writing with reasons within the statutory time limits.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

WILTSHIRE COUNCIL
NORTHERN AREA LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

15 January 2020

Application for Review of a Premises Licence: Tale of Spice, Malmesbury Road,
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 10A

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To determine an application for a review of a Premises Licence in respect of
Tale of Spice, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham, SN15 1QA made by the
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement).

2. Background Information

2.1  An application for the review of the Tale of Spice Premises Licence has been
made by the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). Following advertisement
of the application, no further relevant representations have been received.

2.2 Wiltshire Council (as the Licensing Authority) must hold a hearing to consider
the review application and any representations received. In accordance with
Section 52 (3) of The Licensing Act 2003 the Licensing Sub Committee is
required to take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

2.3 The licensing objectives are:

i) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;
i) Public Safety;

iii) The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and
iv) The Protection of Children from Harm.

2.4  Such steps are:

)] To modify the conditions of the licence;

1)) To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

i) To remove the designated premises supervisor;

V) To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
V) To revoke the licence;

Vi) To determine that no steps are necessary.

2.5 Government Guidance issued under s.182 of the Licensing Act states that:
11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions
and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or

for a temporary period of up to three months. Temporary changes or
suspension of the licence for up to three months could impact on the business

Page 13



2.6

2.7

holding the licence financially and would only be expected to be pursued as an
appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives or preventing illegal
working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a weekend as a
means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise to the
review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any
detrimental financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s
decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and for the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. But
where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing authority
should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle
the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with

licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are

the use of the licensed premises:

o for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs
Act 1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;

o for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

o for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and
music, which does considerable damage to the industries affected;

o for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which

impacts on the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and

propensity for crime of young people;

for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;

for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their

immigration status in the UK;

e for unlawful gambling; and

o for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to deter such
activities and crime. Where reviews arise, and the licensing authority
determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through
the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the
licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously considered.

The premises benefits from a Premises Licence issued under the Licensing
Act 2003, since 24 November 2005. The current licence is attached as
Appendix 1. The premises were previously known as The King Alfred.

The Premises Licence has been held by MD Hafizur Rahaman since
transferring the Licence on 18 October 2016. An application to vary the
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was also submitted at the same time,
naming MD Hafizur Rahaman as DPS.

Page 14



2.8

2.8

3.1

3.2

3.3

The current Premises Licence permits the following activities: -

Licensable activity Hours

Sale of Alcohol Monday to Wednesday 11:00 — 00:00;

(On and Off Sales) Thursday to Saturday 11:00 — 01:00;
Sunday 12:00 — 00:00

Exhibition of Films Monday to Wednesday 07:00 — 00:00;

(Indoors) Thursday to Saturday 11:00 — 00:00

Indoor Sporting Events; Monday to Wednesday 11:00 — 00:00;

Live Music; Thursday to Saturday 11:00 — 01:00;

Performance of Dance; Sunday 12:00 — 00:00

Entertainment of a similar
description to Live Music,
Recorded Music or
Performance of Dance.

(Indoors)
Recorded Music Monday to Wednesday 11:00 — 00:30;
(Indoors) Thursday to Saturday 11:00 — 01:30;

Sunday 12:00 — 00:30

A location plan of the premises is attached at Appendix 2.

Details of the Grounds for Review

The review of the premises licence has been requested by the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement), on the grounds that the Premises Licence Holder
has failed to meet the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and
disorder, due to illegal working identified at the premises. The grounds for
review include:

A visit to the premises on 20 September 2019, identified seven persons found
to be working illegally.

Previous visit on 16 April 2015, identified seven persons found to be working
illegally.

Previous visit on 12 June 2015, identified one person found to be working
illegally.

The application for review is attached as Appendix 3(a). The evidence relied
upon in support of the application is contained within Appendix 3(b).

Emma Batchelor, Licensing Officer, was in attendance of the Home Office

(Immigration Enforcement) visit on 20 September 2019. A formal letter was
sent to the premises following the visit, see Appendix 4.

Page 15



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

Consultation and Representations

Consultation for the review started on 20 November 2019, following receipt of
the application. During this consultation, no relevant representations were
received.

The review process requires a public notice to be posted on the premises for a
period of 28 days together with a copy of the notice posted at the offices of
Wiltshire Council, Monkton Park Offices, Chippenham, SN15 1ER.

The Sub Committee can take into account documentary or other information
presented at the hearing with the consent of all other parties.

Legal Implications

This hearing is governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations.
These provide that hearings should be held in public unless the Licensing
Authority considers that the public interest in excluding the public outweighs
the public interest in the hearing taking place in public.

Officer Recommendations

Officers are not permitted to make a recommendation — the decision is to be
reached by the members of the Licensing Sub Committee.

Right of Appeal

It should be noted that the Premises Licence Holder, the party that applied for
the review and any Responsible Authority or Interested Parties who have
made representations may appeal the decision made by the Licensing Sub
Committee to the Magistrates Court. The appeal must be lodged with the
Magistrates Court within 21 days of the notification of the decision.

The decision of the Licensing Sub Committee does not take effect until the
end of the period for appealing against that decision. In the event of an appeal
being lodged, the decision made by the Licensing Sub Committee does not
take effect until any appeal is heard and finally determined.

The Premises Licence Holder and all Interested Parties have been informed of
the date, time and location of the hearing and their right to attend and be
represented.

Report Author: Roy Bahadoor

Public Protection Officer — Licensing
Tel: 01249 706555

Date of report: 6 January 2020

Page 16



Background Papers Used in the Preparation of this Report

o The Licensing Act 2003

o The Licensing Act (Hearings) Regulations 2005

o Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
o Wiltshire Council Licensing Policy

Appendices

1 Current Premises Licence

2 Location Plan

3(a) Application for Review
3(b) Evidence submitted by Home Office (Immigration Enforcement)
4 Letter from Licensing Officer following accompanied Immigration visit

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



UCI10Ud
Licensing Act 2003 LN/O00003324

Premises Licence

ISSUING LOCAL AUTHORITY WlltSher Cou ncil

~—=—————=_ Where everybody matters

PART 1 - PREMISES & LICENCE HOLDER DETAILS

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Tale Of Spice, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 1QA

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS AND CONTACT DETAILS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Mr MD Hafizur Rahaman
Paramali, Westcroft, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0LZ

Tel: I Email: I

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER

Not Applicable

NAME AND ADDRESS OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF

ALCOHOL

MD Hafizur Rahaman
Paramali, Westcroft, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 OLZ

ISSUING AUTHORITY AND PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES
LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Wiltshire Council LN/11938

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED - THE DATES AND TIMES

Not Applicable

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

ON and OFF Sales

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

Where applicable the provisions of Section 145 of the Licensing Act 2003 apply

Page 19



PART 2 — LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES & TIMINGS

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

Licensable activities Location Day Time From Time To Time From Time To

Exhibit Film Indoors Sunday
Monday 07:00 00:00
Tuesday 07:00 00:00
Wednesday | 07:00 00:00
Thursday 11:00 00:00
Friday 11:00 00:00
Saturday 11:00 00:00

Non Standard Timings

& Seasonal Variations

Indoor Sports Event Indoors Sunday 12:00 00:00

Live Music

Perform Dance Monday 11:00 00:00

Similar to any Music or

Dance Tuesday 11:00 00:00
Wednesday | 11:00 00:00
Thursday 11:00 01:00
Friday 11:00 01:00
Saturday 11:00 01:00

Non Standard Timings

& Seasonal Variations

Recorded Music Indoors Sunday 12:00 00:30
Monday 11:00 00:30
Tuesday 11:00 00:30
Wednesday | 11:00 00:30
Thursday 11:00 01:30
Friday 11:00 01:30
Saturday 11:00 01:30

Non Standard Timings
& Seasonal Variations

Page 20




Alcohol Sales

ON and OFF
Sales

Sunday 12:00 00:00
Monday 11:00 00:00
Tuesday 11:00 00:00
Wednesday | 11:00 00:00
Thursday 11:00 01:00
Friday 11:00 01:00
Saturday 11:00 01:00

Non Standard Timings
& Seasonal Variations

On New Year's Eve - from the end of permitted hours to the start of permitted hours the

following day.

Hrs premises open to
public

Sunday 07:00 00:30
Monday 07:00 00:30
Tuesday 07:00 00:30
Wednesday | 07:00 00:30
Thursday 07:00 01:30
Friday 07:00 01:30
Saturday 07:00 01:30

Non Standard Timings
& Seasonal Variations

Licence Commencement Date

24th November 2005

Last Amendment Date
3rd October 2019

Licensing Officer

Licensing Officer

Page 21




Licensing Act 2003 LN/O00003324

Conditions

ANNEX 1 - MANDATORY CONDITIONS

Supply of Alcohol

1. Where this Licence authorises the supply of alcohol:
No supply of alcohol may be made under this licence:
(a) A_t a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises
(b) ,I&Itczr:icrr?é when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Personal Licence is suspended.

Every retail sale or supply of alcohol made under this licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a Personal Licence.

Exhibition of Films

1. Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition
requiring the admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this
section.

2. Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies,
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation by that body.

3. Where:-
(8) The film classification body is not specified in the licence, or
(b) The relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies
to the film in question; admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation made by that licensing authority.
4. In this section “children” means any person aged under 18; and “film classification body” means the
person or persons designated as the authority under Section 4 of the Video Recordings Act

1984(c39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

Irresponsible Promotions

1. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

2. Inthis paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol
for consumption on the premises—

(&) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—.

i. drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or,

ii. drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);.

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee

to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

Page 22



(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability

Free Tap Water

1. The responsible person must ensure that free potable tap water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available. (This means that responsible persons at all premises must ensure
customers are provided with potable (drinking) water for free if they ask for it.)

Aqge Verification Policy

(@) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(b) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(c) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—

i. a holographic mark, or.
ii. an ultraviolet feature.

Drink Volume Measures

1. The responsible person shall ensure that:

(@) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures:

i. beer or cider: ¥ pint;
ii. gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
iii. still wine in a glass: 125 ml.

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available
to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be
sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Permitted Price

1.
(a) Arelevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

(b) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—
A. “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
B. “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—
P=D+(DxV)
where—

i. P is the permitted price,

Page 23



. D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

iii. V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

C. “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence—
i. the holder of the premises licence,
ii. the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
iii. the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

D. “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

E.“value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

2. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph B of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph B of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next
day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2)The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Door Supervision (except theatres, cinemas, bingo halls and casinos)

1. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:
(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security
Industry Act 2001; or
(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.

2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:
(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or
(b) in respect of premises in relation to:
i. any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises
being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a
temporary event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence), or
ii. any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed
by regulations under that Act.

3. For the purposes of this section:
(a) “security activity” means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and,
which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of that Act) and
(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies
in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Page 24



ANNEX 2A — CONVERTED CONDITIONS

None

ANNEX 2B — OPERATING SCHEDULE

PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE

. When regulated entertainment is being provided the licence holder is to ensure that noise from
the premises is monitored outside of the premises on at least three occasions. Where noise is
found to be at a level likely to cause disturbance to people living in the vicinity, immediate steps
are to be taken to reduce the noise level.

. All windows to be kept closed after 23.00 hrs

PUBLIC SAFETY

. None

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM

. None

PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER

. None

ANNEX 3 — CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER HEARING

None

ANNEX 4 — PLANS

Attached Separately
Dated: 27th August 2004

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7b

WIItShlre CounCI_I Centre Coordinate: 391,428 174,780 Date: 19 Dec 2019
ArcGIS Web Map

i 5
oy L 1.!‘
24 e = \ wishire .'

1 fli;l.ﬂr_ Ambulance HC

e
- B

3 3 !

:-4/r/ Q'l.-ﬁ:i "?—. % -%:
“Busi %

~~Business N\ ﬂ_:

B § X ;P,a_r_lnc.’! Eh':-

Hardenhu'sh Park

L B,
< ’ .I r
i"‘“\_ S == A . E
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100049050. Copyright Getmapping PLC. _,.:-"'""'FFH
/ Wilts hire Council Bythesea Road Trowbridge Wiltshire BA14 8JN. www.wiltshire.gov.uk customerservices@wiltshire.gov.uk /
ar % . i - .

Page 27

QOO 0




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7c

[Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number (optional)]
Licensing Authority: Wiltshire Local Authority
Address: Monkton Park, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 1ER
Reference: AR33

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Home Office Immigration Enforcement

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Tale of Spice
Malmesbury Road

Post town Post code (if known)
Chippenham SN15 1QA

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Mr MD Hafizur Rahaman

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
LN/11938

Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) ]
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

Page 29



3) a member of the club to which this application relates

(please complete (A) below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v" yes

Mr [ Mrs [ Miss [ Ms L] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 30




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Home Office

Immigration Enforcement
Alcohol Licensing Team
Lunar House

40 Wellesley Road
Croydon

CR9 2BY

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)
IE.Alcoholreviews@homeoffice.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v/

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety ]
3) the prevention of public nuisance ]
4) the protection of children from harm ]

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

Grounds for review:
We have grounds that the license holder has failed to meet the licensing objectives of
prevention of crime and disorder, as illegal working has been identified at this premises.

Section 36 and Schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 (the 2016 Act) amended the
Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) to introduce immigration safeguards in respect of
licensing applications made in England and Wales on or after 6 April 2017. The intention is
to prevent illegal working in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol or late night
refreshment.

The Home Secretary (in practice Home Office (Immigration Enforcement)) was added to the
list of Responsible Authorities (RA) in the licensing regime, which requires Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) to receive premises licence applications (except regulated
entertainment only licences and applications to vary a Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS)), and in some limited circumstances personal licence applications. In carrying out the
role of responsible authority, Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) is permitted to make
relevant representations and objections to the grant of a licence or request a review of an
existing licence as a responsible authority where there is concern that a licence and related
licensable activity is prejudicial to the prevention of immigration crime including illegal
working.

Page 31




Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read guidance
note 3)

During a visit to the premises on 20 September 2019, seven persons were found to be
working illegally.

Previous visits on 16 April 2015, seven persons were found to be working illegally and 12
June 2015 one male was encountered and found to be working illegally.

With relation to the continuous and flagrant disregard of the licensing objective - The
prevention of crime and disorder, by employing persons with no right to work in the UK,
Home Office Immigration Enforcement seek the revocation of the premises licence.

Please tick v" yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the L]
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

Please tick v yes

e | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e lunderstand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my X
application will be rejected

Page 32




IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO AFINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 - Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature  Hayley French

Capacity  Responsible AUthOrity. ... ...,

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Alcohol Licensing Team
Lunar House
40 Wellesley Road

Post town Post Code
Croydon CR9 2BY

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional) IE.Alcoholreviews@homeoffice.gov.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are

included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided

that they have actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

o ks

Page 33




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7d

Premises Licence
Review

Mr MD Hafizur Rahaman
Tale of Spice, Malmesbury Road,
Chippenham, Wiltshire

SN15 1QA

Page 35



Page 36



Contents

Contenis.....cccccitveiienvecinnncennn L RTINS SIRR 28 o8 AN TN M AT SN 3
Ouitline of the Circumstances leading to the Review Application............................ 4
SUMIMIAIY ...ttt e et e e e e e et et e et e e e e e s aa e s e ieeeeeaneeas 4

10 Tolol0 [ (= o (o1 TSRO 5
e iRl 0 3aat sl sl e 2t 0 6
B L e it 7

Reasons for R&VIEW .......ccooeeiiiiiiii 13
OutcomelSoughtil. 7 @i, S8l | TR RRR BE St IR a2 14 TATR, 13
Immigration OffENCesS ......ccocoeeieii i 15
Steps to Avoid the Employment of an lllegal Worker ..........ccccoovvviiiiiiiieinnne.. 16
Relevance/lrrelevance of a Civil Penalty or Prosecution.................ccciviiinii, 17
Appendix A — Right to Work checks..............euiiiiiiiiiii e 19
General Advicey. su ekl an innanaddisns nnanniad i o b 19
Checking the DOCUMENtS........oooiiiiiiiicc e 19

If the job applicant can’t show their documents...........cccccvvvvvviiiiiiivieenene., 20
AcceptablelDocumentsi®in samana varsbdll it nvdeman s s dn ha s, 20
Appendix B — Statutory Guidance & Caselaw............ccoooiveiniiiiiiiieiiee e 21
Statutory Guidance (s182 LA 2003) and the Authority’s Licensing Policy......... 21
Casejliawpm: ciama B A0 s, 6 S s, suoaemee Oaad! s bt 23
Appendix C — Supporting EVIAENCE ... 27
Statement oM ... oo es Toneessiors s i Shoveners hesans 28-33

= HEXhibit JHOOMBSIST [ .. e e reeeseeseet e T 34-35
Statementfrom | N ... 36-38

1 REXhibite) S2009 20010 mme s L s BV A s SRR A L 39-48
statement fromi .53 e b0 s e of 8elnin g vd 49-51
Statementfrom|| ..., 52-55
=urEXNIDILS RO A 2 e o o i s e s TR e B i o B4 56-58
Statomentironi L. 5. SYWi0 Do @ ol sy L e 59-62
Statementfrom| N DDDDDIIR............................... 63

Page 37



Outline of the Circumstances leading
to the Review Application

Summary

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

For the third time in five years, an immigration enforcement operation has
discovered multiple persons working at these premises whilst they have no
right to do so.

This premise has previously been visited by Immigration Enforcement on
two previous occasions; 16 April 2015 and 12 June 2015. A total of 8
arrests were made during these visits.

MD HAFIZUR RAHAHAM has been the Premises Licence Holder (PLH)
and the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) since October 2016.

During the most recent visit on 19 September 2019, Immigration
Enforcement arrested a further five individuals for illegally working, bringing
the total number of individuals employed for working illegally to 13. This
clearly demonstrates MD HAFIZUR RAHAHAM flagrant disregard for the
legalities of employing responsibly as well as the failure to head prior
warnings and advice.

The illegal workers provided different accounts of how long they had
worked at the premises. It is the experience of Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) that often illegal workers seek to minimise their criminality by
understating the truth of how long they have worked illegally at a premise.

There have been previous civil penalties issued for the employment of
illegal workers; Civil Penalty fines totalling £70,000 have been issued
however the previous company, Oaklands Eateries Limited have now
dissolved. Civil Penalties Team are currently investigating the most recent
referral.

Succeeding parts of this application explore relevant legislation and the
statutory guidance and Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) ask the
sub-committee to revoke the premises licence as a deterrent to others and
the management/owner of this premises in particular.

Copies of all the witness statements or pocket notebook (PNB) entries
made by relevant immigration officers are appended; should the sub-
committee wish to read these.

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) ask the subcommittee to consider
the flagrant disregard for the legalities of employing responsibly, the failure

Page 38



to head prior warnings and advice and ask that the subcommittee revoke
the premises licence as a deterrent to others and the management/owner
of this premises in particular.

Occurrence

1.10

1.1

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

At 6.15pm on Friday 20" September 2019 a multi-agency operation with
Immigration Enforcement and Wilshire Licencing Authority took place at the
Tale of Spice restaurant situated at Malmesbury Road, Chippenham,
Wiltshire SN15 1QA.

The visit was conducted following an allegation of illegal working at Tale of
Spice in Chippenham and the Tale of Spice Restaurant in Pewsey.
Intelligence received indicated that twelve staff work on site and 6 or 7 of
those are working illegally which does not correlate with the number of
workers the business has declared.

At the time of the operation the premises were operating under a premises
licence issued by Wiltshire Licensing Authority to MD HAFIZUR RAHAHAM
as the Designated Premises Supervisor and Premises Licence Holder. This
had been the case since November 2005.

The operation was conducted by a number of Immigration Compliance &

Enforcement (ICE) officers. The team was led by Immigration Officer (10
B corvery vin 0= NN S R S

and

The operation was undertaken under the authority of an Immigration
Enforcement Assistant Director under Section 179 of the Licensing Act
2003 which permits Immigration Enforcement ICE officers to investigate
immigration offences being committed in connection with licensable
activity.

The premises and its management were already well known to the
immigration authorities because of three previous visits where illegal
workers were discovered, viz:

April 2014 — six immigration offenders discovered.
April 2015 — seven illegal immigration offenders discovered.
June 2015 — one illegal immigration offender discovered.

Anticipating that immigration offenders may attempt to escape detention,
the uniformed ICE officers deployed to contain the main restaurant building
with 10’s covering the rear of the premises. Once these were in place, OIC

, Wiltshire Licencing Officer and other |IO's entered the
premises and served the authority by Assistant Director document on the
PLH and DPS MD HAFIZUR RAHAHAM.

Page 39



1.17

1.18

1.19

The ICE officers subsequently identified that four persons had been
working illegally in the restaurant, these were:

_, a national of — with no right to remain in

the UK or work here (and who had attempted to evade capture),
, a national of - with no right to remain in the UK or

work here;
, again a national of _ with no right to remain in

the UK or work here (and who had attempted to evade capture); and
, a national of ﬁ with no right to remain in the

UK or no right to work.
ﬁ, a national of _ with an outstanding asylum

claim but does not have a right to work in the UK.

The PLH and DPS MD HAFIZUR RAHAHAM was served a notice of
potential liability (NOPL) in respect of all the illegal workers.

The situation regarding each of the illegal workers is described below.

1.20

1.21

1O [ a5 instructed by the OIC to cover the rear of the property.
As the officers gained entry to the premises, 1O |l identified a male
running out of the premises and attempting to escape over a 6ft wall at the
rear of the property. 10 ]l apprehended the male, arrested him as
a person suspected of immigration offences and placed in to handcuffs
using the approved Home Office front stack technique and took the male
back to the premises.

1O I questioned the individual and it was established that this
individual was . a | rztional.
informed 10 that he was not working at the

premises and was sitting at the table when the Immigration Officers
entered the premises.

asked the following questions to [ EGTcIENINGE;

How long have you lived here?

B - (four) years

I Does the owner provide you with food?
I Y s, everyday

B Do they provide you with clothes?
I <. they provide me with everything.
I Do<s he give you any money?
B o, never.

I Do you spend every day in the restaurant?

I : Once or twice.

Page 40



1.23

B Have you ever waited for the employer?
I \o. no

B \Vhy did you run from immigration?
B | os scared.

B /< you claiming any benefits?
I o

B How do you support yourself?
B Ficnd gives me money.

I Docs the manager of the restaurant give you money?
B /'y friends, the manager of the restaurant doesn't give
me money, but gives you things you need clothes, food, train tickets.

B o cluded the interview and arrested [ for

using verbal and documentary deception an offence under S24A (1)(A) of
the IA 1971 as amended. and a breach under S26(1)(c) and S26(1)(d).
was transported to Melksham Police Station.

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

1.28

On entering the premises |0 [l encountered a male removing his
apron. 10 identified herself and asked the male to confirm his
identify.

The male identified himself as | ] ] Iand claimed that he was a

I ational. I could not provide 10 with any
documentation to irove that he was from [JJl] and stated that

he grew up in and that he had an outstanding claim with the
Home Office.

B conducted an immigration check and found that the claim had
been concluded. After checking Home Office systems, it was also believed
that as one of the same persons under an alias of

, a national who has been an overstayer in the UK
since 2011.

B - rested I =5 2 person liable to be detained and

removed from the UK under Paragraph 16, Schedule 2 of the Immigration
Act 1971 (as amended).

With the assistance of a Home Office approved |l interpreter, IO
‘)nducted the following illegal working interview with || ;
10 How long have you been working here?

I V< been staying upstairs for a week. I've been helping just

today, as it's Friday they expect to get busy.
10 I What is your job role/what are your duties?

Page 41



I Cicaning dishes and helping in the kitchen, sometimes | help
packing the takeaway food.

10 I What days/hours do you work each week?

IR | came downstairs 17:30 until about 20:30. | can't work around
hot oil so not too long as | felt a skin allergy from it.

1O [ Do you work the same hours/days every week?

I No, just today.

10 I Who owns this takeaway/restaurant?

I | don't know, I've come here to see HAFIZ RAHMAN (AHMED
then pointed to the male at the bar speaking to the licensing officer. That
person was the DPS MD HAFIZUR RAHAHAM)

1O [l What is HAFIZ job here?

B He works at the front as a waiter.

10 JI: Who gave you this job?

B HAFIZ RAHMAN

10 IIl: Who tells you what hours/days to work?

I HAFIZ RAHMAN said help out just Friday, today. I'm going back
to my friends address in Birmingham tomorrow.

10 [ Who tells you what tasks/duties to do each day?

I HAFIZ RAHMAN said to help cleaning dishes today.

10 I Who gave you the apron that you took off when you saw me?
I | 2sked the kitchen staff for an apron as | didn't want to ruin my
clothes.

1O [ How are you paid (money, accommodation, food)?
B There was no agreement to work, help out in exchange for
sleeping here for a week.

10 [ How do you support yourself financially?

B \Vy friends help me out, the ones | stay with.

10 [ Has HAF1Z RAHMAN given you any money?

B t's up to HAFIZ RAHMNA if he gives me any money after this
week’s stay. He has given me free food while | have been staying here
though.

10 [l What name does the employer know you as?

B They know me as [l 1t's my nickname.

10 [l Did you show documents before being offered the job? If so,
what?

I \o

1O [l: Does your employer know that you are not allowed to work in
the UK.

I No.

Page 42



1.29 10 I exited the premises at approximately 21:05hrs and |||
was transported to Melksham police station. Copies of the interview are
exhibited as JL/20092019.

1.30 We of two persons that attempted to evade the operation
but 10 , deployed at rear of premises, apprehended a male
when he attempted to escape from a first-floor window. 1O
detained a male later identified as || | | NN =

national with no right to work or remain in the UK. When detained,
was wearing what is described as a ‘waiter’s uniform’.

1.31 10 | interviewed . who provided the Immigration

Officer with his details and current immigration status. Home Office status
check confirmed that does not have permission to work in the
UK. 10 I informed of this and | agreed that
he did not have permission to work in the UK.

conducted an illegal working interview with [ -

1.32 10
[e : How long have you been working here?
. I've been working here about nearly 6 months. Maybe a bit

more.
10

: What is your job role / what are your duties?

. | am a waiter.

- What days do you work each week?

: Basically | help them just Friday and Saturday as the busiest

: What hours do you work each week?

. | work from six until ten o’clock

: Do you work the same hours/days each week?

: Yes

: What time did you start?

. Six o’clock

- What is the name of the business?

. Tale of Spice

: Who gave you the job (name and role in business)?

: | got information through my friend and this is how | started. |
spoke to the manager and he allowed me to work here. | think his name is
Azi.

- Who tells you what days/hours to work?

. Azi told me what to do and who to serve.

: Who tells you what tasks/duties to do each day?

. Azi does.

: Who is the owner?

. | have never seen the owner. Azi or Hafiz is the manager. |
can't remember his name.

10 : How are you paid (money, accommodation, food)?

Page 43



1.33

I C:sh in hand. | get given free accommodation, the day | work
he gives me free food.

. If money, how much and how do you receive it?
Sometimes £60 or £80 he gives me each week.

: Who pays you?

. Azi or Hafiz I'm not sure of his name.

: Do you pay income tax or have a National Insurance

number?

. No, | do not.
10 : Has the employer paid you yet?
: Yes, he has paid me before but he normally pays me on

. Has the employer paid you today?
: What does the employer know you as?

: Did you show documents before being offered the job? If
so, what?
- No, | just showed him my passport and told him | had a pending
application.

10
in the UK?

: Because he didn’t ask me, | didn't tell him.
10 - Is there a written or verbal contract between you?
: No, nothing.

1O [ concluded the questioning and escorted [ to the

Home Office vehicle which transported him to the nearest custody facility.

: Does your employer know that you're not allowed to work

1.34

1.35

1.36

10 Il was part of the joint working operation to Tale of Spice and was
initially tasked with providing outside cover. At 19:08hrs, 1O

entered the premises and was asked to speak to a male sitting at a table
wearing a waiter’s uniform.

10 Il asked the male for his name and Home Office checks showed
that the male was , a Bangladesh national with no
right to work in the UK.

10 I conducted an illegal working interview with | in
English.

10 : How long have you been working here?
I B<fore Christmas 2018.
10 l: What is your job role and your duties?

T \Vaiter.

10 Il What days / hours do you work each week?

Page 44



B 5 days. 4 to 5 hours per day.
1O JIl: Do you work the same hours every week?

B No. Any 5 days.

10 I Who gave you this job (name and role in business)?
B | just called them. The manager Hafiz. | don’t know his surname.
10 I Who tells you what days/hours to work?

B Hafiz.

10 I Who tells you what tasks/duties to do each day?

B | = 2 waiter.

1O I How are you paid (money, accommodation, food)?
I C:sh in hand, free accommodation upstairs.

1O I If money, how much and how do you receive it?

I Dcpends on how many hours | work. Between £150-£180 per
week. Cash in hand.

10 I Who pays you?

B Hafiz the manager.

1O JIl: Do you pay income tax or have a National Insurance number?
B | don't know.

10 I What day do you get paid?

B sunday night.

10 I \What name does the employer know you as?

B He knows me by my real name.

IO Did you show documents before being offered the job? If so,
what?

B | showed him my driving licence | don’t know if | showed him
anything else.

10 I Who else works here?

I Evcryone here this evening.

1.37 10 -concluded the interview at 19:18hrs. |l signed a copy of

10 notebook confirming his answers to the questions above
(Exhibit SHO1)

1.38 10 I, who was also part of the illegal working operation, was tasked
to assist with any encounters inside the main restaurant area and
immediately identified a number of males appearing to be working in smart

uniform.

1.39 10 | spoke with ho appeared to be working in the
kitchen, dressed smartly as a waiter. 10 introduced himself and
displayed his warrant card and asked if understood English and
ﬂ confirmed that he did.

Page 45



1.40

1.41

10 [l carried out an immigration check using HO systems which
revealed that _@lyed in the UK beyond his permitted leave.
Checks showed that has an outstanding asylum claim but has not

got permission to work.

|o- conducted an illegal working interview with[JJllin English;

10 How long have you worked here?

B L<ss than a month.

10 I What is your job role / duties?

I | help being a chef.

10 [ll: What days/hours do you work per week?

I \When busy but maybe up to but less than an hour.

1O JJIIll: Do you work the same hours/days every week?

I \hen they are busy but generally Thursday, Friday & Saturday but
not guaranteed.

10 Il What documentation did you show your boss about your
identity when you started?

I | know the boss, so | didn’'t show him any documents.

10 [IIl: How did you get paid?

B | o<t free food and sometimes £10 or £15 when | come in for 2
days.

10 [Il: Who gave you this job?

I The manager Hafiz

10 Il Who tells you what the duties are each day?

I The senior person Tuhin.

10 Il Do you pay income tax or have a National Insurance number?
B No.

1O [ll: What name does your employer know you as?

I

1O Il You are dressed in a smart shirt and shoes, were you going to
be serving food tonight?

B o

10 [ll: When | entered the kitchen, | saw you doing things with others
cooking, what were you doing?

I Fetching things for the chef and washing up if they need help.

Page 46



Reasons for Review

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Whether by negligence or wilful blindness illegal workers were engaged in
activity on the premises on three separate occasions, yet it is a simple
process for an employer to ascertain what documents they should check
before a person can work. It is an offence to work when a person is
disqualified to do so, and such an offence can only be committed with the
co-operation of a premises licence holder or its agents. It is also an offence
to employ an illegal worker where there is reason to believe this is the case.

The case of East Lindsey District Council v Hanif (see8.11) determined that
in such circumstances, even without a prosecution, the crime prevention
objective is engaged. The statutory Guidance issued under the Licensing
Act provides that certain criminal activity employing illegal workers should
be treated particularly seriously and it is envisaged that the police will use
the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime.

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) submits that for commercial
reasons those engaged in the management of the premises employed
illegal workers and a warning or other activity falling short of are view is in
appropriate; therefore, Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) has
proceeded straight to review.

Outcome Sought

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) asks that the premises licence is
revoked. Merely remedying the existing situation (for instance by the
imposition of additional conditions or a suspension) is insufficient to act as
a deterrent to the licence holder and other premises’ licence holders from
engaging in criminal activity by employing illegal workers and facilitating
disqualified immigrants to work illegally.

This submission and appended documents provide the licensing
subcommittee with background arguments and information pertinent to that
contention. These provide the sub-committee with a sound and defensible
rationale as to why it should revoke the licence.

It is in such circumstances as this review application that a respondent may
suggest that conditions are imposed which would prevent a reoccurrence of
the employment of illegal workers in the future; an argument that the
subcommittee should take remedial and not punitive action.

However, since 2006 (with the introduction of the Immigration, Asylum and
Nationality Act 2006) employers have had a duty to conduct checks to
ensure employees and potential employees are not disqualified from
working. Only by completing the required checks and maintaining records

Page 47



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

of such checks can an employer demonstrate a ‘statutory excuse’ and
evade liability for a civil penalty issued by Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement). In order to protect themselves, reputable employers have
been conducting these checks since 1996 when it first became a criminal
offence to employ illegal workers.

The 2006 Act already imposes duties and responsibilities on a company or
individual seeking to employ a person—whether in the licensed trade or
otherwise - to conduct right to work checks

In seeking revocation, Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) has
considered and rejected conditions as an alternative, in part because this is
specifically addressed paragraph 1.16 of the Guidance, viz: %(...) Licence
conditions should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties
or responsibilities placed on the employer (my emphasis) by other
legislation”.

Conditions requiring an employer (or its agent) to undertake checks that are
already mandated and where advice is readily available and clearly set out
for employers, keep copies of documentation and to restrict employment
until these checks are made etc. replicate the requirements of the 2006 Act
and should be discounted.

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) contends that a licence holder who
has himself or through his agents negligently or deliberately failed to
conduct right to work checks which have been a requirement since 2006
should not be afforded an opportunity to do so until caught and then merely
be asked to do what they should have been doing already. Deterrence and
not mere remedy is appropriate and is supported by case law (as set out
within section 8 of this submission).

Respondents who fail to convince a subcommittee that the imposition of
conditions to undertake proper right to work checks is a suitable alternative
to a deterrent outcome often point to the option of suspension of a licence;
pointing out that this may be a suitable punitive response instead which will
deter others.

Often this will include claims that the business has ‘learnt its lesson’ and
that since its criminal activity has been discovered it has reconsidered its
position, brought in new procedures, ‘parachuted in’ consultants and new
managers etc. On occasion it is hinted that the respondent will ‘accept’ a
suspension as an alternative to revocation, assuaging an authority’s
concern that an appeal may otherwise be launched. This is not a deterrent -
a suspension merely warns other potential perpetrators that they may trade
illegally until caught and then suffer only a brief hiatus in carrying out
licensable activity before continuing with it. The risk of being caught is low
so the consequence of being caught must be stiff in order to qualify as
deterrence.

Page 48



3.11

3.12

3.13

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) would counter such claims and
point to the continuing changes made to both immigration law and the
Guidance (paragraphs 11 .26 — 11 .28) which point to a requirement to
send a clear message to potential illegal immigrants that UK authorities will
do all they can to prevent them finding illegal employment and a similar
message to employers that those employing illegal workers will face severe
disruption and penalties. There are simple processes (set out in section 5
of this submission) to avoid the hire of illegal workers and the legislative
thrust is in avoiding the occurrence in the first place—not remedying the
situation once discovered.

If it were not for criminally minded or complicit employers; illegal workers
would not be able to obtain a settled lifestyle and deprive legitimate
workers of employment. The use of illegal labour provides an unfair
competitive edge and deprives the UK economy of tax revenue. lllegal
workers are often paid below the minimum wage (itself an offence) and
National Insurance payments are not paid. The main draw for illegal
immigration is work and low-skilled migrants are increasingly vulnerable to
exploitation by criminal enterprises; finding themselves in appalling
accommodation and toiling in poor working conditions for long hours for
little remuneration.

A firm response to this criminal behaviour is required to ensure that the
licence holder and/or its agents are not allowed to repeat the exercise and
in particular, in the interests of the wider community to support responsible
businesses and the jobs of both UK citizens and lawful migrants. It is also
required to act as a deterrent to others who would otherwise seek to seek
an unfair competitive advantage, exploit workers and deny work to the
local community, evade the payment of income tax and(unlawfully) inflate
their profits to the expense of others.

Immigration Offences

3.14

3.16

lllegal workers are those subject to immigration control who either do not
have leave to enter or remain in the UK, or who are in breach of a
condition preventing them taking up the work in question. It is an
employer’s responsibility to be aware of their obligations and ensure they
understand the immigration landscape to avoid the risk of prosecution, the
imposition of a civil penalty or their vocation/suspension of their premises
licence.

Since 1996 it has been unlawful to employ a person who is disqualified
from employment because of their immigration status. A statutory excuse
exists where the employer can demonstrate they correctly carried out
document checks, i.e. that they were duped by fake or forged documents.

Page 49



3.16  The Immigration Act 2016 came into force in July 2016 and its explanatory
notes state that “these offences were broadened to capture, in particular,
employers who deliberately did not undertake right to work checks in order
that they could not have the specific intent required to ‘knowingly’ employ
an illegal worker”.

3.17  Since 2016 an employer may be prosecuted not only if they knew their
employee was disqualified from working but also if they had reasonable
cause to believe that an employee did not have the right to work: what
might be described as wilful ignorance where either no documents are
requested, or none are presented despite a request. This means an
offence is committed when an employer ‘ought to have known’ the person
did not have the right to work.

3.18 Since 2016 it has also been an offence to work when disqualified from
doing so. It is obvious that without a negligent or wilfully ignorant
employer, an illegal worker cannot work. Such an employer facilitates a
criminal offence and Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) highlights
this as relevant irrespective of whether a civil penalty is imposed, or a
prosecution launched for employing an illegal worker.

3.19 In this context, under section 3(1)(C)(i) Immigration Act 1971 (as amended
by the 2016 Act) restrictions are not limited simply to employment (i.e.
paid work) but now includes all work.

3.20 Thus, an individual with no right to work in the UK commits offences if they
undertake paid or unpaid work, paid or unpaid work placements
undertaken as part of a course etc. are self-employed or engage in
business or professional activity. For instance, undertaking an unpaid
work trial or working in exchange for a nonmonetary reward (such as
board and lodging) is working illegally and is a criminal offence committed
by the worker and facilitated by the ‘employer’.

Steps to Avoid the Employment of an lllegal Worker

3.21 ltis a straightforward process for any employer, no matter how small, to
prevent themselves employing an illegal worker. If an employer has failed
to take even the most basic steps then Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) contends they have chosen to remain ignorant of the
immigration status of their workforce and no amount of potential imposed
conditions is sufficient, in our opinion, to avoid the legitimacy of revocation
in proving a deterrent to others to the employment of illegal workers.

3.22 The Home Office has made checklists widely available which set out what
a responsible employer should ask for ahead of employing any person in

Page 50



3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

order to demonstrate ‘due diligence’ and avoid liability for inadvertently
employing an illegal worker.

Since April 2017 these checklists have been embedded in the statutory
applications for personal licences and premises licences, the transfer of
premises licences and designated premises supervisor variations.

The first 4 ‘hits’ on a Google search for “right to work” are links to
employer checklists and information on the GOV.UK website.

The first link (https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work) details
general advice, checking the documents, taking a copy of the documents,
what if the job applicant can't show their documents and provides details
of an employers’ telephone helpline. This page has a direct link to what
documents are acceptable proofs of a right to work in the UK and also
allows an employer to fill out an online enquiry about a named individual
they are considering offering employment to.

Appendix A sets the above out in some detail.

Relevancel/lrrelevance of a Civil Penalty or Prosecution

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

An employer found to have ‘employed’ an illegal worker may, dependent on
culpability and the evidence available, be issued with a civil penalty or
prosecuted or indeed neither.

Where an illegal worker is detected a civil penalty maybe issued against the
employer in accordance with the Home Office Code of Practice on
Preventing lllegal Working (May 2014). In the case of a civil penalty the
balance of probabilities test applies where as a prosecution requires a
higher burden of proof.

However, to issue a civil penalty under section 15 Immigration, Asylum and
Nationality Act 2006 the Home Office Code of Practice requires some proof
that not only was an illegal worker working at the premises, but they were
‘employed’. Usually this is taken as meaning the illegal worker was under a
contract of service or apprenticeship, whether express or implied and
whether oral or written.

But where an employee has not bothered with the basics of return to work
checks, placed an employee on ‘the books’, paid the minimum wage or paid
employer national insurance contributions - it becomes difficult to ‘prove’ the
employment statement where the only evidence maybe the word of an
illegal worker who has since been detained or who has ‘moved on’.

In such cases where paid employment cannot be demonstrated, a civil
penalty may not be issued even where the premises licence holder or his

Page 51



agent has facilitated a disqualified person committing an offence under
section 24B Immigration Act 1971 (as amended by Immigration Act 2016) of
working illegally.

3.32 This does not however prevent the crime prevention objective being
engaged with as the premises licence holder has none the less facilitated a
criminal offence taking place and the lack of checks suggests that in the
past (and is likely in the future) has employed illegal workers. In drawing its
conclusion, the subcommittee is entitled to exercise common sense and its
own judgment based on the life experience so fits members. The East
Lindsey case (see section 8) provides that action (revocation) to prevent
what is likely to happen in the future is legitimate.

Page 52



Appendix A — Right to Work checks

The first 4 ‘hits’ on a Google search for “right to work” are links to employer check
lists and information on the GOV.UK website.

The second link is to the Home Office document; “An Employer's Guide to Right to
Work Checks” (published 16" May 2014 last updated 16" August 2017).

Another link provides a site (https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-
employment status) which guides an employer through the process AND allows an
employer to make an online submission to the Home Office to check if the
proposed employee is prohibited from working as well as providing a telephone
helpline.

Specifically, the first link (https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work)
provides as follows:

General Advice

¢ You must see the applicant’s original documents;
¢ You must check that the documents are valid with the applicant present;
and

e You must make and keep copies of the documents and record the date you
made the check.

Checking the Documents

In relation to checking the documents it also adds that an employer needs to
check that:

¢ the documents are genuine, original and unchanged and belong to the

person who has given them to you;

The dates for the applicant’s right to work in the UK haven't expired;

Photos are the same across all documents and look like the applicant;

Dates of birth are the same across all documents;

The applicant has permission to do the type of work you're offering

(including any limit on the number of hours they can work);

For students you see evidence of their study and vacation times; and

¢ [If 2 documents give different names, the applicant has supporting
documents showing why they're different, e.g. a marriage certificate or
divorce decree

Taking a copy of the documents
When you copy the documents:

e Make a copy that can’t be changed, e.g. a photocopy

Page 53



for passports, copy any page with the expiry date and applicant’s details
(e.g. nationality, date of birth and photograph) including endorsements, e.g.
a work visa

for biometric residence permits and residence cards (biometric format),
copy both sides

for all other documents you must make a complete copy

keep copies during the applicant's employment and for 2 years after they
stop working for you

record the date the check was made

If the job applicant can’t show their documents

You must ask the Home Office to check your employee or potential employee’s
immigration employment status if one of the following applies:

you're reasonably satisfied that they can't show you their documents
because of an outstanding appeal, administrative review or application with
the Home Office;

they have an Application Registration Card; or

they have a Certificate of Application that is less than 6 months old
Application registration cards and certificates of application must state that
the work the employer is offering is permitted. Many of these documents
don't allow the person to work.

The Home Office will send you a ‘Positive Verification Notice’ to confirm that the
applicant has the right to work. You must keep this document.

Acceptable Documents

A list of acceptable documents can be found via the link to

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/441
95 7/employers guide to acceptable right to work documents v5.pdf

Page 54



Appendix B — Statutory Guidance &
Caselaw

Statutory Guidance (s182 LA 2003) and the Authority’s
Licensing Policy

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

In order to avoid punitive action, respondents to review hearings sometimes
refer to both the statutory guidance issued under section 182 Licensing Act
2003 and those parts of the Authority's own policy which replicate
paragraph 11.10 of that Guidance, viz:

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns
about problems identified at premises, it/s good practice for them to give
licence holder’s early warning of their concerns and the need for
improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence or
certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns.

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) submits that in the particular
circumstances of cases where Immigration Compliance and Enforcement
receive intelligence concerning the employment of illegal workers and act
upon it; such warnings are inappropriate.

Not only would advance warning of enforcement activity prevent the
detention of persons committing crimes and the securing of evidence; a
warning after the event to comply with immigration legislation serves as no
deterrent.

In particular; Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) submits that
paragraph 11 .10 of the Guidance must be read in conjunction with the
more specific paragraphs relating to reviews arising in connection with
crime (paras. 11.24 — 11.29).

Paragraph 77.26

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that
the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to
determine what steps should be taken in connection with the premises
licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. (...). The
licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of
the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the

Page 55



3.38

3.39

3.40

3.41

interests of the wider community and not those of the individual licence
holder.

Thus the financial hardship occasioned by the suspension or revocation of
the premises licence should not sway the sub-committee but instead it
should look at what is appropriate to promote the objective within the wider
business and local community given “illegal labour exploits workers, denies
work to UK citizens and legal migrants and drives down wages” (Rt. Hon
James Brokenshire, Immigration Minister on the introduction of the 2016
Act).

In particular; the sub-committee are asked to consider (below) the cases of
R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court; [2008] WLR
(D)

350 and East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara’s
Restaurant and Takeaway), [2076) EWHC1265 (Admin) where in both
cases the High Court stated remedy of the harm or potential harm is not
the only consideration and that deterrence is an appropriate consideration
in dealing with reviews where there has been activity in connection with
crime.

Paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance states:

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed
premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use
of the licensed premises(...)for employing a person who is disqualified
from that work by reason of their immigration status in the UK.

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) would draw the sub-committee’s
attention to the change in wording of this paragraph following the April 2017
revision of the guidance, where the previous reference to ‘knowingly
employing’ was removed.

Paragraph 11.28 of the Guidance states:

It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which
are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise, and the licensing
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is
expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance -
should be seriously considered.

Page 56



3.42

3.43

3.44

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) considers this paragraph self-
explanatory; where an enterprise employs illegal workers, it is the duty of
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) to bring forward reviews and for
the authority to consider revocation in the first instance.

In support of this statement; Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) would
draw the subcommittee’s attention to the “Guidance for Licensing
Authorities to Prevent lllegal Working in Licensed Premises in England and
Wales” (Home Office) [April2017] where at section 4.1 it states;

“It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies will use
the review procedures effectively to deter illegal working”.

Since the main draw for illegal migration is work, and since low-skilled
migrants are increasingly vulnerable to exploitation at the hand of criminal
enterprises, the government has strengthened enforcement measures and
the statutory Guidance to deter illegal workers and those that employ them.

Deterrence is a key element of the UK government’s strategy to reduce
illegal working and is supported by both the Guidance and Case Law.

Case Law

3.45

3.46

3.47

Deterrence as a legitimate consideration by a licensing sub-committee has
been considered before the High Court where remedial measures (such as
the imposition of additional conditions) were distinguished from legitimate
deterrent (punitive) measures such as revocation.

R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court; [2008] WLR (D)
350.

This was a case where a premises had sold alcohol to under age persons
and subsequently the licensing authority suspended the licence. This was
overturned on appeal to the Magistrates’ Court and subsequently appealed
to the High Court by the authority. The premises licence holder argued that
they had a policy in place for checking the age of customers but this was not
a perfect policy and had not been adhered to and that rather than revoke the
licence, instead stringent conditions on proof of age should instead be
imposed on the licence.

Issues relevant to the case before today’s sub-committee which were
considered in the Bassetlaw judgement included whether a licensing
authority was restricted to remedial action (as opposed to punitive action
such as revocation); and the precedence of wider considerations than those
relating to an individual holder of a premises licence when certain criminal
activities (as specified in the Guidance) took place.

Page 57



3.48

3.49

3.50

3.51

3.52

It specifically examined (and set aside in the case of ‘certain activities’) those
parts of the Guidance now contained within paragraph 11 .20 and 11 .23, viz:

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing
authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes
of the concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action taken
should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no
more than an appropriate and proportionate response to address the
causes of concern that instigated the review. However, it will always be
important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a
licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the
promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises.

In her judgement, Mrs Justice Slade stated (at 32.1 & 33.1 of the citation):

“Where criminal activity is applicable, as here, wider considerations come
into play and the furtherance of the licensing objective engaged includes the
prevention of crime. In those circumstances, deterrence, in my judgment, is
an appropriate objective and one contemplated by the guidance issued by
the Secretary of State.(...) However, in my judgment deterrence is an
appropriate consideration when the paragraphs specifically directed to
dealing with reviews where there has been activity in connection with crime
are applicable.”

Having confirmed the legitimacy of punitive measures
(suspension/revocation) for offences listed in what is now contained within
paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance, Mrs Justice Slade concerned herself with
another aspect of the appeal—namely the imposition of conditions which
were already present but not properly implemented (paragraph34.1).In this
case the appellant was suggesting that proof of age conditions(rather than
revocation) could be imposed to ensure that the legal requirement not to sell
alcohol to those under 18 years of age was met by him and his staff.

This has some similarity with any argument that may be put forward in the
case before the subcommittee today that the imposition of conditions to
check immigration status either directly or through an agency (essentially a
requirement since 2006 under the Immigration, Asylum and Immigration Act
2006) would serve as sufficient remedy for the employment of illegal workers
and negate a deterrent (suspension/revocation) being imposed by the
subcommittee despite the wording of the Guidance at paragraph 11.28.

Mrs Justice Slade stated: “The sixth new provision was acceptable
identification to establish the age of a purchaser shall be a driving licence
with photographs, passport or proof of age scheme card recognised by or
acceptable by the licensing authority. | am told these provisions were

Page 58



3.53

3.54

3.55

3.56

already in place, but not properly implemented. No doubt those are perfectly
sensible and appropriate provisions to be included on a licence. However it is
said that the action taken on appeal being confined in effect to reiterating
existing practice with a minimal addition was entirely inappropriate to meet
the situation where there have been sales of alcohol to 14 year old girls”.

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) contends that in the case before the
subcommittee the facts are similar. In the cited case straight forward,
sensible enquiries could have been made as to the age of the children and
the imposition of additional conditions as a form of remedy was considered in
appropriate by Mrs Justice Slade for ‘those serious cases’ set out in the
Guidance.

In the case before the subcommittee, simple steps (set out at Appendix A)
were available to prevent the employment of illegal workers -none were
taken; the imposition of conditions to remedy this situation is inconsistent
with the section 182 Guidance and this case citation. A negligent employer
should expect revocation in the first instance.

East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara’s Restaurant and
Takeaway), [2076]EWHC 7265 (Admin)

This is a recent High Court decision (published April 2016) which has
similarities with the one before the sub-committee in that it related to the
employment of an illegal worker and where a prosecution for such had not
been instigated.

Amongst other matters it had been argued for the premises licence holder
that the crime prevention objective was not engaged where a prosecution or
conviction for the employment of an illegal worker was not in place. Whilst
the initial hearing may have suggested several illegal workers being
employed, the High Court appeal and decision related to the employment of
one individual and is therefore, Home Office (Immigration Enforcement)
would argue, indistinguishable from the matter before the subcommittee
today.

The case reaffirms the principle that responsible authorities need not wait for
the licensing objectives to actually be undermined; that crucially in
considering whether the crime prevention objective has been engaged a
prospective consideration (i.e. what is likely to happen in the future) of what
is warranted is a key factor. It also reaffirmed the case of Bassetlaw in
concluding that deterrence is a legitimate consideration of a sub-committee.
Mr Justice Jay stated: “The question was not whether the respondent had
been found guilty of criminal offences before a relevant tribunal, but whether
revocation of his licence was appropriate and proportionate in the light of the
salient licensing objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder.
This requires a much broader approach to the issue than the mere
identification of criminal convictions. It is in part retrospective, in as much as
antecedent facts will usually impact on the statutory question, but importantly
the prevention of crime and disorder requires a prospective consideration of
what is warranted in the public interest, having regard to the twin

Page 59



considerations of prevention and deterrence. In any event, | agree with Mr
Kolvin that criminal convictions are not required.” (Paragraph 18)

Mr Justice Jay added: “Having regard in particular to the twin requirements of
prevention and deterrence, there was in my judgment only one answer to this
case. The respondent exploited a vulnerable individual from his community
by acting in plain, albeit covert, breach of the criminal law. In my view his
licence should be revoked.” (Paragraph 23)

Page 60



Appendix C — Supporting Evidence
statement from [ NGEGENG

- Exhibit JHOO1

statement from ||| G

- Exhibit JL20092019

Statement from [ GTEGEGE
statement from [ G

- Exhibit SHO1

Statement from || N
statement from [ EGTEEE

Page 61



Page 62



RESTRICTED (when complete) [ man )
Approved for UKBA use - Decembaer 2011

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rufes, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1867, s. 9; Magistrates' Courts Act 1980, s.58

f

URN

1
Statement of: _

Age if under 18: Over 18 (if over 18 insert over 18) Occupation: Immigration Officer (10)

This statement (consisting of 2 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully
stated in it anything which I know to be false, or do not believe o be true.

Signature (witness) - ....................................................... Date: 13°11/2019

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded E] (supply witness details on rear)

[ am an immigration Officer, warrant number with the Home Office Immigration
Enforcement Team, based at General Buildings, 31-33 Newport Road, Cardiff. On Friday 20"
September 2019 I was on duty with officers from Bristo! and Cardiff Arrests Teams when we
attended Tale Of Spice Chippenham, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire SN15 1QA. Entry
to Premises was under Section 179 of licensing Act 2003 as amended by Immigration Act 2016. I
arrived at the premises at approx. 18:20 hours and asked to cover the rear of the property. When
officers gained entry, Male 1 ran from the rear of the property and tried to escape over the wall to the
rear of the property. Male 1 as apprehended and placed in handcuffs using the approved Home Office
Front Stack technique and arrested at 18:15 as a person 1 suspected of Immigration Offences.

I took the subject back into the property at 18:20, however, male 1 was adamant that he was not
working there and was just sitting at a table when officers entered. Male | confirmed he knew the
owner and he was his friend, but that he does not work at the property. The following questions were
asked of the subject:
Q.How long have you lived here?
Adyears —m————417ouon e —— =
Q. Does the owner provide you with food?
A. Yes, everyday.
Q. Do they provide any clothes,
A. Yes they provide me with everything
Q. Does he give you any money-
A. No never
Q. Do you spend everyday in restaurant
A. Once or twice
Q. Do you have ever wait for the employer
A. No, no-
Q. Why did you run from immigration?
A. 1 was scared
Q. Are you claiming any benefits? f
A.No
Q. How do you support yourself?
A. Friends give me money
Q.Does the manager of the restaurant give you any money?
A. My friends, the manager of the restaurant doesn't give me money, but gives you things you need.

Signature: Witnessed by: «J /A i

RESTRICTED (when complete)
Page 63




Page 64



RESTRICTED (when complete)
Approved for UKBA use — December 2011

Clothed food train tickets.

The interview was ended at 20.33 as subject was adamant that he was not working and signed my
Pronto. (See exhibit JH0001 below)

——

/
R

Signature:

2010/11

Witnessed by: /v / A

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Page 65

%)



.\

Page 66



(29
(B E M B N M|  RESTRICTED (when complete) | B Ji N |

Not Disclosable

Witnegs contact details

Work address: Cardiff Arrest Team, immigration, Compliance and Enforcement Team, Floor 2, General

Buildings, 31 ~ 33 Newport Road, Cardiff, Postcode: CF24 0AB
Work telephone No: Wark Mobile{ S
Mobile: E-mail address. -@homeomce.gsi.gov.uk

Preferred means of contact (specity details): Email

Best time to contact (specity detaiis): Week day

Gender: Male Date and place of birth: _
Former name: Ethnicity Code (16 + 1):-

DATES OF WITNESS NON-AVAILABILITY: N/K

Witness care
a) lIs the witness willing to attend court? YES. If ‘No', include reason(s) on form MG6.
b) What can be done o ensure attendance? N/K

c) Does the witness require a Special Measures Assessment as a vulnerable or intimidated witness? (youth
under 18; wilness with mental disorder, learning or physical disabilily; or wilness in fear of giving evidence or wilness
Is the complainant in & sexual offence case) NO. If ‘Yes' submit MG2 with file in anticipated not guilty,
contested or indictable only cases.

d) Does the wilness have any particular needs? NO. If 'Yes' what are they? (Disability, healthcars, childcare,
lranspont, disabilily, language difficullies, visually impaired, restrictad mobifity or olher concerns?).

Witness Consent (for witnegs completion)
a) The Victim Personal Statement schame (victins only) has been explainedtome  Yes (] No =
b) Ihave been given the Victim Personal Statement leaflet Yes ] No X
c) |have been given the leaflet “Giving a witness statement to the police...” Yes [J No [
d) 1consent to police having access to my medical record(s) in relation

to this matier (obtained In accordance with local practice) Yes (0 No O NA K
e) |consent to my medical record in relation to this matter being disclosed

to the defence Yes [ Noe O NA K
f) 1consent lo the statement being disclosed for the purposes of civil, or other

proceedings if applicable, e.g. child care proceedings, CICA Yes [J] No O NA R
Signature of WItNESS: .....c..oeveeecrieeeee vt ses s e seeenns PRINT NAME- ......................................
Signature of parent/guardian/appropriate adult: .........ceoovveeeeevvrveieeenee, PRINT NAME: ......c.o.oovviirriiece e
Address and telephone number (of parent etc.), if different from above: N/A

o | BCEC W B RESTRICTED (when complete) | I JEL N |

Page 67



Page 68



Not Disclosable

This tear off section to be completed and handed to the witness

HOME OFFICE Immigration Enforcement ~ Contact Details
The officer dealing with your caseftaking this statement is:
Office: Rank & Number:

Office:

Telephons:

Contact E-Mail:

Reference No:

The officer dealing with your case can help but may not always be available,

Giving a witness statement to the HOME OFFICE - what happens next?

20001 | L RESTRICTED (when complete) IR BN EER

Page 69




Page 70



EEEEENDN RESTRICTED (when complete) IENBER

S

Not Disclosable

Thank you for coming forward. Wa value your help and we will do
everything we can to help you.

The criminal justice system cannot work without wiltnesses. They are the
most important element in bringing offenders to justice. Now you have
made a statemaent, you may be asked to give evidencs In courl.

Is there anything eise | can do?
Yes. itis important to tall UKBA:

= {f you have Isft anything out of your statement or if it Is Incormect

« if your address or phone number changes (lrials colfapsa every day
because wilnasses cannot be contacted in ime)

o dales when you may not be able to go fo court, Please contact the
officer dealing with your case to update this information as soon as it
changes. It Is needed when the trial date is set.

Wil the suspect (the defendant) or the defence lawyar be given my
address?

No, your address is recorded on the reverse of your witness statement
and the defendant or thelr solicitor only receives a copy of the front.
Also, wilnesses are not usually asked (o give their address out loud in
court. The defendant or thelr salicilor is normally told the names of any
wilnesses.

What will happen to my statement?

if a suspect is charged over this incldant, your statemenl and all the other
evidence will be passed to the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS). CPS
Is responsible for prosecuting people who have been charged with a
criminal offence in England and Wales. Althaugh they work closely
together, UKBA, the police and CPS are separale organisations.

Who will read my statement?

Everyone involved with the case will read your stalement (e.g. UKBA,,
the police, CPS, defence and the magisirale or judge).

What if someone tries to Intimidate me?

It Is a criminal offence fo intimidale (frighten) a witness or anyone else
helping the UKBA In an Investigation. If you are harassed or threatened
in any way before, during or after the trial, you should tell the police
immedislely and inform the UKBA officer dealing with your case.

WIil § be told what Is happening In the case?

UKBA and CPS are improving procedures lo keep victims and witnesses
up to date with what is happening but it Is not always possible 1o do this
in every case. Remember, you can conlact UKBA at any time If you have
questions or concems.

You will be contacted if you are needed to go to court {but it may be

some time after you gave your slatement, as cases laks ime to prepare),
Victims of crime are usually told:

» if a suspect Is charged
e about ball and what happens at court
» if the case doas not proceed for any reason.

Wilnesses who are not victims of the crime may not be contacte

again if:

» the suspect admits the offence and is cautioned or pleads guil
at court

» there is not encugh avidence to prosecule the suspect

« no suspect is identifisd

Wil | have to go to court?
You will only have to go to court if the defendant either:

< denies the charge and plaads ‘not guiity' or -

« pleads guilty but denies an important part of the offence whict
might affact the type of sentence they recsive.

If you are asked {o go to court, the prosecution and defence

lawyers will ask you questions about your evidence. You will be

able to read your statement to refresh your memory first. If you

have given a stalement and are then asked to go to court to givt

evidence, you must do so.

You will be sent

» a letter telling you when and where {o go
» an explanatory leaflet.

What will happen If | don't go to court?

if you have any problems or concems aboul going to court, you
must inform the officer dealing with your case as soon as
possibie. if you have to go to court but there is reason to believe
thal you will not go voluntarily, the court may Issue a witness
summons against you. If you still fall to attend without good
reason you may be found ‘in contempt of court’ and arrested.

Where wiil the case ba heard?

Most cases ara heard in the magistrates’ court. More serious
crimes are heard In the crown court before a jury.

Who can help?

Every court has a free and confidential Witness Service and you
can contact them before the trial. Their tralned volunteers offer:

« information on what happens in court

» emotional support and sameone to talk to in confidence

» someone lo lo be with you in court when you give evidence

* 8 visil to the court before the trial, including where possible, a
look around a court raom so you know what to expect.

The officer dealing with your case will be able to provide you wit
conlact details.

The Witness Service does not discuss evidence or give legal
advice.

Exira Help is availablg {o support vuinerable or intimidated
witnesses. If the CPS lawyer thinks that a witness qualifies for
this help, known as 'Special Measures’, he/she will ask the cour
for permission to use them. The Witness Service, police or
UKBA will tell you what is avallable and the pofice or CPS will b
able 1o discuss your needs.

they cannot discuss lhe specific details of the case.

2010/11

Victim Support and Witness Service

The Victim Support scheme operates from a number of locations across the UK, and their volunteers are specially
trained to provide free and confidential information, support and advice.

All victim and witnesses will be offered support from Victim Support's Witness Service, which is independent,
confidential and free. This support will include someone to talk lo, a quiet place in which to wait and a chance ta see
the court before the day of the trial. Although the Witness Service volunteers will explain the court process to you,

RESTRICTED (when complete)

- W

Page 71



Page 72



CHCH M B M M| RESTRICTED (when complete) | B N M

Not Disclosable
Victim Support Helpline

0845 30 30 800

The Witness Charter

UKBA Is not a signatory of the Witness Charter but adheres to the spiril of charter which sets out the standards of
service that witnesses can expect to receive at every stage of the Criminal Justice process from:

o UKBA, if you are a witness to a crime or incident
¢ Other Criminal Justice agencles and lawyers, if you are asked to give evidence for the prosecution or defence in a
criminal court

The standards apply lo all witnesses, regardiess of whether you are also the victim. If you are a victim of a crime, you
have rights that are set out in the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime.

Unlike the Victims Code of Praclice, the Witness Charter is not set out in law, and there may be constraints which
affect the ability of the Criminal Justice agencies to provide the service to all witnesses in all cases,

Being kept updated on progress during the investigation:
After you have given a statement, if the offence is of a very serlous nature and UKBA have told you that you are
likely to be called to give evidence in court, UKBA will seek to update you:

o atleast once a month on the progress of the case until the point of clasure of the investigation or
= al the point at which someone is charged, summoned, or dealt with out of court.

Belng kept updated on progress after charge:
If you are a prosecution witness to any offence, UKBA will seek to inform you:

« when the defendant has been charged
* whether the defendant has been released on bail to attend court , or help in custody untit the first court appearance
» whal relevant bail conditions apply.

Further information about being a witness can be downloaded from the Grown Prosecution Service website at

www .cps qov.uk/victims witnesses

Page 73



Page 74



Application

8 Notetook
£ Opersions
= Packages

Police Engquines
UKW/ 8F

Vists

Non-Visit Work
Person Search

Photos

WL AL PR IS] S A LT 28 S B L T 8 L e o T ) T

Entry lo Premses

Method of Entry
Encounters

Arrest

Search of Premises

Cash Sercures

Offers of Voluntary Departure
Mitigating Circumslances
Caonlact Details

Megal Working - Employes
lilegal Workang - Employer
Rught to Renl - Tenant
Right to Renl - Landlord
Comphant Environment
80 Dala

Additional Addresses

Use of Force

Oocuments Sarved
Freetext

QaA

Past Visd Werk

Criticat Incidents
Feedback

Invalid Documents

HOo01 Pcﬁé,i of 2. :

Refresh  Search :  View Report Logs

EV24-31,935

Q&A

Details

Type
of work

Visit reference
Created
by

Prontold

Subject CID Persen 1D
Subject name
Subject DOB

Scbject naticnal ty

Subject
gender

Time

Created at geclocation
Creation date

Language of Interview
What language is the interview carr ed out
in?

Interpreter
used?

Q&A

how long have you lived here?
does the owner
provide you with food?

do they provide
any dothes,

does he give
you any money

do you spend everyday In restraurant

da
you have ever walt for a the employer

why dd you run from
immigration?

are you claming any benefits?®
how
do you support yourseil®

dees the manager of
the resterautt give you any money?

Page 75

Visit Regort

! visre
EV24-31,935

iy Tn

Male

18:40

Easting
Northing

' 191456
174783

20-09-2019
20:32:4

4
years

Yes,
everyday

Yes they provide me with
everything

No never

Once or bvee

Friends give me
money

My frends,

the manager of the restrauni doesn't give me
you nesd Clothed food train bickets



Page 76



Declaration

Interviewee
signature

JHOOOL page 24F 2

&&&&&&&
000000

Page 77

&



Page 78



RESTRICTED (when complete) E

Approved for UKBA use - December 2011

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, .58

Statement of: -

Age if under 18: Over 18 @ over 18 insert ‘over 18) Occupation: Immigration Officer (1O)

URN

This statement (consisting of 3 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated
in it anything which [ know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature (witness)' ISR |, ..., ......... 000, 0 o ieeseieenesinsssres st N Date: 19/11/2019
Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded D (supply witness details on rear)

I am employed by the HOME OFFICE, IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT as an arrest trained Immigration
Officer (IO) since 2013. I am currently based in CARDIFF IMMIGRATION, COMPLIANCE AND
ENFORCEMENT TEAM, at the office situated at GENERAL BUILDINGS, FLOOR 2, 31 - 33 NEWPORT
ROAD, CARDIFF, CF24 0AB. On enforcement visits I wear full P.P.E and am clearly identified as HOME
OFFICE IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT personnel. [ identify myself to all persons I encounter with my
warrant identity card and badge prior to speaking to them.

On 20th SEPTEMBER 2019, I was on duty with the CARDIFF & BRISTOL Immigration Enforcement teams,
my role on this enforcement visit was as cover officer 1. I attended a restaurant known as Tale of Spice
Chippenham, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 1QA. Access was gained via Section 179 of
the Licensing Act 2003 at 18:15 and myself my colleagues entered. I encountered PID: (SN
* male, who claimed to be a &mtional. He could not provide any ID or
evidence that he was from d stated he grew up in he claimed he had an
outstanding claim with the Home Office, however a check contirmed this had concluded. It was also
believed that he was one of the same persons on Home Office systems as PID:
male, an overstayer in the UK since 2011. Therefore, I arrested the subject as a
person liable to be detained and removed from the UK, under Paragraph 16 of schedule 2 of the 1971
Immigration Act (as amended).

Tasked the subject the below questions regarding his suspected employment at the premises using -
big word interprete:

Q) How long have you been working here?

A) “T've been here staying upstairs for a week. I've been helping just today, as it’s Friday they expect to get
busy.”

Q) What is your job role/ what are your duties?

A) “Cleaning dishes and helping in the kitchen, sometimes I help packing the takeaway food.”

Q) What days/ hours do you work each week?

A) “1 came downstairs 17.30 until about 20.30. I can't work around hot oil, so not too long as I felt a skin
allergy from it.”

Q) Do you work the same hours/ days every week?

A) “No, just today.”

Q) Who owns this takeaway / restaurant?

A) “I don't know I've come here to see HAFIZ RAHMAN.” (Subject pointed to the male at bar speaking to
licensing officer. The male is the DPS)

Q) Who allows you to sleep above the takeaway/restaurant?

A) “HAFIZ RAHMAN"

Q) What is HAFIZ job here?

A) “He works at the front as a waiter.”

Signature: —
| RESTRICTED (when complete)

Page 79

3o

Witnessed by: AL B U S,

!



Page 80



RESTRICTED (when complete) [[Menr ]
Approvad for UKBA use — December 2011 i

Q) Who gave you this job (name and role in business)?

A) “HAFIZ RAHMAN"

Q) Who tells you what days/ hours to work?

A) “HAFIZ RAHMAN said help out just Friday, today. I'm going back to my friends address in
BIRMINGHAM tomorrow.”

Q) Who tells you what tasks/ duties to do each day?

A) “HAFIZ RAHMAN said to help cleaning dishes today.”

Q) Who gave you the apron that you took off when you saw me?

A) “1 asked the kitchen staff for an apron, as didn't want to ruin my clothes.”

Q) How are you paid (money, accommodation, food)?

A) “There was no agreement to work, help out in exchange for sleeping here for a week.”

Q) How do you support yourself financially?

A) “My friends help me out, the ones I stay with.”

Q) Has HAFIZ RAHMAN given you any money.

A) “It's up to HAFIZ RAHMAN if he gives me any money after this week’s stay. He has given me free food
while I've been staying here though.”

Q) What name does the employer know you as?

A) “They know me as It's my nickname.”

Q) Did you show documents before being offered the job? If so, what?

A) ISNO"7

Q) Does your employer know you're not allowed to work in the UK?

A) “No.”

At approximately 21:05 myself and my team exited the premises and the subject was transported to police
custody.

I exhibit JL/20092019, which is a ten page print out of my electronic notes which I made at the time
Immigration enforcement visit.

RESTRICTED (when complete)
Page 81

Witnessed by: /‘//*4‘ S e A



’

Page 82



(BB MU W W RESTRICTED (whencomplete) [ BB |

Not Disclosable

itn nta il

Work address: Cardiff Arrest Team, Immigration, Compliance and Enforcement Team, Flaor 2, General

Buildings, 31 - 33 Newport Road, Cardiff, Postcade: CF24 0AB

Work telephone No: Work Mobile: —
E-mail address: —Qhomeomce.gsi.gov.uk

Preferred means of contact (specify detais): Email

Best time to contact (specify detaits): Week day

Gender: Female Date and place of birth: —
Former name: Ethnicity Code (16 + 1): .

DATES OF WITNESS NON-AVAILABILITY: N/K

Witness care
a) Is the witness willing to attend couri? YES. If 'No’, Include reason(s) on form MGS6.
b) What can be done to ensure attendance? N/K

c) Does the witness require a Special Measures Assessment as a vulnerable or intimidated witness? (youth
under 18; witness with mental disorder, fearning or physical disabilily; or witness in fear of giving avidence or witness
Is the complainant in a sexual offence case) NO. If ‘'Yes' submit MG2 with file in anticipated not guilty,

contested or indictable only cases.

d) Does the wilness have any parlicular needs? YES. If 'Yes' what are they? (Disability, healthcare, childcare,

branspont, disabilily, language difficulties, visually impaired, rastricted mobility or other concerns?).

1 am dyslexic, so please baar this in mind if seeing original notes, as spelling and grammar is likely to have

G

been rushed and may be poor,
i Congent (for witness n
a) The Victim Personal Statement scheme (victims aniy) has been explainedtome Yes [ No X
b) | have been given the Victim Personal Statement leaflet Yes [ No @
c) |have baen given the leaflet “Giving a witness statement to the police...” Yes [J No X
d) 1consent to police having access to my medical record(s) in refation
to this matter (obtained in accordance with local practics) Yes [ Ne O NAR

e) | consent to my medical record in relation to this matler being disclosed

to the defence Yes [J
f) 1consent to the statement being disclosed for the purposes of civil, or other

procesdings if applicable, e.g. child care proceedings, CICA Yes [J
Signature of witness: EEEEEEEEEm——————————mm PRINT NAME: (R
Signature of parent/guardian/appropriate adult: ...............ccoocvceeeeenne.... PRINT NAME: ...........

Address and telephone number (of parent etc.), if different from above: N/A

No [J N/A

Ne O NAK

.............................

Page 83

T



Page 84

L



Ext 1617 JL_/Zco??d/G/ Hre 10F 10 @

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

S R

Details

Type of work Visit

Visit reference ' EV24-31,835

Created by ﬁ

Address Tale Of Spice Chippenham, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15
1QA (Visit Address)

Created at geolocation Easting 391453
Northing 174760

Creation date 20-09-2019 18:20:04

Power of Entry '

Entry gained Yes

Time of entry 18:15

Are you the officer who gained entry? |No

Name of officer who gained entry — R

Power of entry used Section 179 Licensing Act 2003

Subject Declaration '

1 confimm that | give consent for Immigration Enforcement to enter the premises. My rights have been explained to me
and | understand that | may withdraw the consent.

No signature provided

Notice to Occupier
Are you the officer that served the No
Notice to Qccupler?

Notes

An arrest was then made afler entry under $178, and then an our Statutory powers stasted. When inviting kitchen
workers out from the kitchen when we where on §179, | witness a make in a red tshirt go up to the accommodation
above.

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:56 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 of 1

Page 85



Page 86

. L}
TR VR e



Exitio!7 JJ 20092017 Moe 3 oF 14

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Type of work Visit

Vigit reference EV24-31,935

Created by )

Pronilo £ P
Time 18:22

Created at geolocation Easting 391467

Northing 174788

Creation date 20-09-2019 18:22:24

Chosen Identity

ldentity sourceltype Biographic

Name

DOB

Gender

Nationality

Languages

Languages spoken None specified

Interpreter used?

Encounter

Type of encounter Subject

Encountering officer ﬁotﬁcei’

Declared immigration status Provided me with ARC card

How and when did the subject last 2001

enter the UK?

is this person the subject of the visit? |Yes

Where in the premises was the Subject seen trying to avoid immigration by going upstairs to accommodation.
|subject located? Subject wearing red tshirt and was seen wearing an apron over it in the

kitchen area.

Do you know the subject's CID Person |Yes

ID?

ClD Person ID i

Details of vuinerabilities/ safeguarding |No.

Issues

Sectlon 55 issues? No

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:55

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 87

Page 10f 3



'—.

Page 88



Expti 17 JL/Zagqm? /%ZJOF/O @

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Referral to soclal services? No

Referral to NRM (National Referral No
Mechanism)?

Duty to Notify/MS1 referral made? No
References (Person ID, HO Ref, Port

Ref, BRP)
Biographic search results Systems checked

Result of chacks Asylum refused April 2016, ARE 16.01.18 PVOT
23.05.19 negative. Reporting - set up on 14.11.15
never showed at Becket house. No Docs. ETD -
no trace.

Status returned by FAS

system checks

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:55 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 2 of 3

Page 89



Page 90



ExXHIEr7T  TJL /10092005 FAcE 4 oFco

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Identity Documentation

Document 4

Document type

Name in document (if
different from above)

Document reference
Document expiry date

Country of issue
(if different from
nationality above)

Suspacted fraudulent
Notes
Photos

BRP

United Kingdom

No

Notes

Is this your permanent address? No

{sat navs shows addrass does exit).

I'm just helping them today,
Why where you upstairs.
| needed the toilet so went upstairs.

Management Checks Complete

Date management checks complete

23-09-2019 14:18:38

Reviewer(s)

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:55

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 91

Page 3 of 3

()



Page 92



EXH18 17 JL/Z@O"’/Z.O/? A E S oF7C

Page 93

43



Page 94



CRIET Tefocog2009 ALE & OFro

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Visit

Type of work

Visit reference EV24-31,835

Created by

ProntelD

Subject CID Person ID

Subject name

Subject DOB

Subject nationality

Subject gender Male

Time 18:52

Created at geclocation Easting 391437
Northing 174772

Creation date

20-09-2019 18:51:58

Language of Interview

What language is the interview carried
out in?

Interpreter used?

Yes

Datails of interpreater

6i;iigagion i

How long have you been working
here?

I've been here staying upstairs for a week. I've been helping just today, as its
friday they expect to get busy.

What is your job role/ what are your
duties?

Cleaning dishes and helping in the kitchen, sometimes | help packing the
takeaway food.

What days/ hours do you work each
week?

| came downstairs 5.30 until about 8.30 . | cant work around hot oil 80 not too
long as | felt a skin allergy from it.

Do you work the same hours/ days
every week?

No, just today.

Control

Who owns this takeaway / restaurant?

| don't know i've come here to see Hafiz RAHMAN. (Subject pointed to the
male at bar speaking to licensing officer. Male is the DPS)

Who allows you to sleep above the
takeaway/restaurant?

Hafiz RAHMAN

What is Hafiz job here?

He works at the front as a waiter.

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:57

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 0of 3

Page 95



Page 96



G

Cx 747 Jz_/’)_aaqzo/e oz e F 0F 0

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Who gave you this job (name and role
in business)?

Hafiz RAHMAN

Who tells you what days/ hours to
work?

Hafiz RAHMAN said help out just Friday, today. I'm going back to my friends
address in Birmingham tomorrow.

Who tells you what tasks/ duties to do
each day?

Hafiz RAHMAN said to help cleaning dishes today.

Who gave you the apron.

| asked the kitchen staff for an apron, as didn't want to ruin my clothes.

ﬁ%mm%

emunera
How are you paild (money,
accommodation, food)?

There was no agreement to work help out in exchange for sleeping here for a
week,

how do you support yourself

My friends help me out, the ones i stay with.

financially?

has Hafiz RAHMAN given you any It's up to Hafiz RAHMAN if he gives me any money after this weeks stay. He

money. has given me free food while I've been staying here though.

_—-—__-—_—__--_ ot f‘-‘ R3Sy :'; % :.F: :r N_—_r )-"anjg ‘1, tl

.,.k ot AR, ff~ ga;,‘, 2

!oyment‘(:l hecks i A h, e j‘“ Jﬁ e

What name does the employer know

you as?

Did you show documents befare No.

being offered the job? If so, what?

Does your employer know you're not {No.

allowed to work in the UK?

TR uwurj-ugq

'.f-’sts-&w J
e

Bhotographs)
No photogtaphs

Interviewee slgnature _

20-09-2019 1914 16

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:57

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 97

Page 2 of 3



Page 98



Extt1 BT TL)200920!F FP5E & OF o)
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Observations

Observations

Management Checks Complete
Date management checks complete  }23-09-2019 14:18:39

Reviewer(s)

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:57 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 3 of 3

Page 99



Page 100



Xt 17

G

JL/M‘/’ZOZ? Aoe 9 OF o

FFICIAL SENSITIVE

—
'-ggf‘a;-w*'= e 5 ’5"; Lﬁ
g - £ )
FTonE BT e Loy ’“ g ‘___-

Details

5 .-sgé' e &!!udr_;u-

]

Type of work

Visit

Visit referance

EV24-31,935

Created by

ProntolD

Subject CID Person ID

Subject name

Subject DOB

Subject nationality

Subject gender

Male

Created at geolocation

Easting 391456
Northing 174759

Creation date

20-09-2019 19:17:31

Ai"‘l’és_t' Deta i'lis_

Time of arrest

19:17

Power of arrest

17(1) Immigration Act 1971

Arresting officer

Reason for arrest

lllegal entrant (EWOL)

Grounds for arrest explained to
subject?

Yas

Catution administerad

Administrative caution

Confirm subject understood caution? |Yes

Notes

Search of Person

Subject searched Yes

Power used for search Para 25C Schedule 2

Justification

Was ssen in kitchen area.

Name of officer who performed search

Items found

No

Outcome After Arrest

Outcome

Detention

Detalls of detention, including family
split

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:58

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 101

Page 1 of 2



Page 102



fﬂhﬁx 7 Jz,/z_oo D204L9
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

%5 O OF 0O

Detention authorised by

pending GATEKEEPER REFERRAL
* i ?a;_-r_.r_’g.'rvi A3,
B i

5 S ~'}m_%

3 3
ek ot i ]

R R R L G P e b e
g e %‘& \ i'{%{,‘. .
& e L b 3“!.%%’ T3 %}'

: eSS R VAR i

e ey
e

No notes entered.

Page 2 of 2

Printed 19/11/2019 at 9:58

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 103



Page 104



RESTRICTED (when complete) 1

WITNESS STATEMENT

(CJ Act 1967, 5.9 MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3) (a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1)

URN

Statement of:

Age if under 18 Over 18 (If over 18 insert "over 18%) Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 3 pages signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make
it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated anything
which | know to be false nr da not believe to be true.

SIGNAIUTE ... e ————— s Date: 14/11/2019

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness detlails on rear)

[ am the above named officer; I work in the Immigration Compliance and Enforcement Team East
idlands (Staffordshire) which is part of the Home Office, Immigration Enforcement, based at
elbourne House, Forge Lane, Etruria, Stoke on Trent, ST1 5RQ.

t approximately 18:30 hours on the 20" September 2019, I was on duty in full uniform accompanied
y OIC-10 , Arrest 1 =IO ,Cover1-10 Arrest 2 - 10

over2 -10 Arrest 3 -10 Cover 3 -10 Cover 4 - 10 [ was
cting as Arrest 4 officer.

e attended Tale of Spice, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire SN15 1QA under Section
179 Licensing Act 2003.

t 18:30hrs we arrived at the premises. [ was on rear cover along with IO . I was informed
hat the officers entered the premises under the licensing act. Approximately two minutes later a male
ho I could not see due to a fence blocking my view of his face exited the premises and attempted to
limb the fence. An immigration officer stopped him, arrested him and placed him in handcuffs. A
rther few minutes later I witnessed an asian male attempt to open a window on the first floor level
y the rear and run onto the roof. Again this male was stopped and promptly arrested.

Il subjects encountered were brought into a sterile area in the restaurant and spoken to.

t approximately 18:45hrs I was requested to enter the premises and start speaking with the subjects
hat were encountered.

introduced myself to a subject ( ) and informed him of the reason for the visit. He gave me his
etails and current immigration status. I then conducted checks with the Home Office command and
control team who informed me that the subject has no permission to work in the UK. [ informed Male
1 of this and he agreed that he has no permission to work.

then took the subject upstairs to locate his passport and to ask him a few questions.

At 18:54hrs [ began questioning male 1 about him working illegally in the premises:

Q1: How long have you been working here?

A1 I've been working here about nearly 6 months. Maybe a bit more.

Signature: e Signature Witnessed DY: ...

Page 105



Page 106



Form MG 11 con
RESTRICTED (when complete) @

Continuation of Statement of:

..............................

Page 2

Q2: What is your job role/ what are your duties?

A2: I am a waiter.

Q3: What days/ hours do you work each week?

A3: Basically I help them just Friday and Saturday as its the busiest days.
Q4: What days/ hours do you work each week?

A4: I work from six until ten o 'clock

Q5: Do you work the same hours/ days every week?

AS5: Yes

Q6: When did you start working here?

A6: I know it was about December or January

Q7: What time did you start?

A7: Six o’clock

Q8: What is the name of the business?

A$: Tale of spice

Q10: Who gave you this job (name and role in business)?

A10: I got information through my friend and this is how I started. I spoke to the manager and he
allowed me to work here. I think his name Azi

Q11: Who tells you what days/ hours to work?

All: Azi told me what to do and who to serve

Q12: Who tells you what tasks/ duties to do each day?

Al2: Azi does

Q13: Who is the owner?

Al3: I have never seen the owner. Azi or Hafiz is the manager. I can’t remember his name.
Q14: How are you paid (money, accommodation, food)?

A14: Cash in hand. I get given free accommodation, the day I work he gives me free food.
Q15: If money, how much and how do you receive it?

Al5: Sometimes £60 or £80 he gives it me each week.

Q16: Who pays you?

Al6: Azi or Hafiz I'm not sure of his name

Q17: Do you pay income tax or have a National Insurance number?

Al7: No I do not

Q18: Has the employer paid you yet?

Al18: Yes he has paid me before but he normally pays me on Sunday

Signature: .o Signature Witnessed DY ...,

2004/05(1) Pag e 107



Page 108



Form MG 11 cont

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Continuation of Statementof: = e,
Page 3

Q109: Has the employer paid you yet today?

Al19: No

Q20: What name does the employer know you as?

A20:

Q21: Did you show documents before being offered the job? If so, what?

A21: No I just showed my passport and told him that i have a pending application
Q22: Does your employer know you're not allowed to work in the UK?

A22: Because he didn’t ask me [ didn’t tell me

Q23: Is there a written contract or a verbal one between you?

A23: No nothing

At 19:03hrs I concluded the questioning.

On completion of the questioning, all the other encountered subjects were questioned and then placed
in an immigration cell van and conveyed to the nearest custody facility.

Signature: ... Signature Witnessed Dy: ...

2004/05(1)
Page 109



Page 110



L R 1

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates' Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN

Statement of:

Age if under 18: over 18 (itover 18 insert ‘over 18)  Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 3 pages signed by me) Is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and |
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it
anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: Date: 13-11-2019

| am an immigration Officer, warrant number , with the Home Office Immigration
Enforcement Team, based at GENERAL BUILDINGS, 31-33 NEWPORT ROAD, CARDIFF.
On Friday 20th SEPTEMBER 2019 | was on duty with officers from the Bristol and Cardiff
Arrest Teams when we attended TALE OF SPICE CHIPPENHAM, MALMESBURY ROAD,
CHIPPENHAM, WILTSHIRE, SN15 1QA. Entry to the premises was under Section 179 of
Licensing Act 2003 as amended by Immigration Act 2016. | amived at the premises at
approximately 18.21 hours and was initially requested to remain outside the front of the
premises. At approximately 18.43 hours | entered the premises. | was asked to speak to
Male 1. Home Office checks confirmed he has no right to work in the UK. Male 1 was sitting
at a table and wearing a waiter’s uniform. At 19.08 hours | asked him the following questions
and his replies follow about working at the premises. The interview was conducted in
English.

Q. “HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN WORKING HERE?"

A. "BEFORE CHRISTMAS 2018."

Q. “WHAT IS YOUR JOB ROLE/ WHAT ARE YOUR DUTIES?"

A. “WAITER.”

Q. "WHAT DAYS/ HOURS DO YOU WORK EACH WEEK?"

A."“5 DAYS. 4 TO § HOURS A DAY."

Q. “DO YOU WORK THE SAME HOURS/ DAYS EVERY WEEK?"
A. “NO. ANY § DAYS.”

Page 111




Page 112



Q. “‘WHO GAVE YOU THIS JOB (NAME AND ROLE IN BUSINESS)?"

A.“1 JUST CALLED THEM. THE MANAGER HAFIZ. | DONT KNOW HIS SURNAME."
Q. “WHO TELLS YOU WHAT DAYS/ HOURS TO WORK?"

A. "HAFIZ"

Q. “WHO TELLS YOU WHAT TASKS/ DUTIES TO DO EACH DAY?"

A. "I AM A WAITER."

Q. “HOW ARE YOU PAID (MONEY, ACCOMMODATION, FOOD)?"

A. “CASH IN HAND. FREE ACCOMMODATION UPSTAIRS.”

Q. “IF MONEY, HOW MUCH AND HOW DO YOU RECEIVE IT?"

A. "DEPENDS ON HOW MANY HOURS | WORK. BETWEEN £150-£180 PER WEEK.
CASH IN HAND."

Q. “WHO PAYS YQU?”

A. “HAFIZ THE MANAGER."

Q. “"DO YOU PAY INCOME TAX OR HAVE A NATIONAL INSURANCE NUMBER?"
A. “I| DON'T KNOW."

Q. “WHAT DAY DO YOU GET PAID?"

A. “SUNDAY NIGHT."

Q. “WHAT NAME DOES THE EMPLOYER KNOW YOU AS?"

A. Male 1 stated He knows me by my real name.

Q. *'DID YOU SHOW DOCUMENTS BEFORE BEING OFFERED THE JOB? IF SO,
WHAT?"

A. “I SHOWED HIM MY DRIVING LICENCE. | DONT KNOW IF | SHOWED HIM ANYTHING
ELSE.”

Q. “WHO ELSE WORKS HERE?"

Signature ......  ccoveivieeereeen, Signature witnessed by NI A ..........

A BN RE Official Sensitive EEEREEN

Page 113




Page 114



Official Sensitive

A. “EVERYONE HERE THIS EVENING."

Interview ended at 19.18 hours and Male1 signed a copy of my electronic notebook
confirming his answers to my questions as above. | am attaching exhibit SH01 an electronic
copy of the interview.

k- SIGNaMUre «..vvveeeiierrerieeeeeeeeeeeeeee, Signature witnessed by (\j/A .........

e = 5 5 2 Official Sensitive C

Page 115




Page 116



Witness contact details

Home address: Home Office, 31-33 Newport Road, Cardiff Postcode: CF24 0AB
Home telephone No: N/A Work telephone No:

Mobile: E-mail address: @homaeoffice..gov.uk

Preferred means of contact (spacty dataisy. Mobile

Best time to contact (specify details): 09.00 to 17.00 hours

Gender: Male Date and place of birth:

Former name: Ethnicity Code (16 + 1):

DATES OF WITNESS NON-AVAILABILITY: 15" - 25" November 2019

Witness care
a) s the witness willing to attend courl? Yes if ‘No’, include reason(s) on form MG6.
b} What can be done to ensure attendance?

¢) Does the witness require a Speclal Measures Assessment as a vulnerable or intimidated witness? (youth
under 18; witness with mental disorder, leaming or physical disability; or witness In fear of giving evidence or wilness
is the complainant in a sexual offence case) No [f 'Yes' submit MG2 with file in anticipated not guilty,
contested or indictable only cases.

d) Does the witness have any particular needs? No If ‘Yes' what are they? (Dissbility, healthcare, childcare,
lranspart, disabilily, language difficulties, visually impaired, resiricled mobility or other concerns?).

Witness Consent (for witness complation}

a) The Victim Personal Statement scheme (victims only) has been explainedlome Yes [] No [

b) 1 have been given the Victim Personal Statement leaflet Yes [] No ¥
¢) | have been given the leaflet "Giving a witness statement {o the pofice...” Yes [ No X
d) [consent {o police having access to my medical record(s) in relation

to this matter (obtalned in accordance with local practice) Yes [ No O NA R
e) |consent lo my medical recard In relation to this matter being disclosed

to the defence Yes[] No[J NA R
f) |consent to the slatement being disclosed for the purposes of civil, or other

proceedings If applicable, e.g. child care proceedings, CICA Yes ] No[J NAK
Signature of WIlNESS: ......vciviineniicnnicnnnrrernie s seenansoseens PRINT NAME: Stephen Anthony HOBAN...................
Signature of parent/guardian/appropriate adult: ............. ’\/ (/q' T PRINT NAME: '\/ A ............................

Address and telephone number (of parent etc.), if different from above:

Official Sensitive
N W T W B

Page 117




Page 118



Apgfication

B Notatook
EJ Operatons
= Packagas

Palica Enquirias

s UKV BF
Visits

Non-Visit Work
Person Search

Photos

Ll J G Bt el A A T A Ll L O LT R Tl P R A f ]

Entry to Premises

Method of Entry
Encounters

Arrest

Search of Premisas

Cash Seizures

Offers of Voluntary Departure
Mitigating Creumsiances
Contact Details

filagal Working - Employee
{lega! Working - Employer
Right lo Rent - Tenant
Right to Rent - Landiord
Camplian Environment
8io Data

Addltonal Addresses

Usae of Force

Documents Served
Freatext

Q8A

Paost Visit Work

Crical Incidants
Feedback

Invals! Documents

Refresh

Itlegal Working - Employee

Illegal Working - Employee

Details

Tygpe of wark
Visit reference
Created

by

ProntnlD
Subject (1D Person ID
Subject name

Subject DOB

Subject
nationality

Subject gender
Time

Created at geolocation
Creation date

Language of Interview

What language is the Interview camied out
ln?

Interpreter used?

Obligation

How lang have you been working here?
What Is your job role/ what are your duties?

What days/ hours do you work each
week?

Do you work the same hours/ days every
week?

Control

Who gave you this job (name and role in
business)?

who
tells you what days/ hours to work?

Wha te'ls you what tasks/ duties to do each day?

Remuneration

Haow are you paid {money, accommodaticn food ?

Page 119

SHo L

* My Documents  Search

Vasit
EV2+-3,

Male
19.08

91456
174742

Easting
Northing

20-09-2019
19.08:11

Enghsh

Before Chnsomas 2018
Waiter

5 days. 4 to § hours a day.

No Any §
days

1 just calied them. The manager
Hafiz, I dont know his surname.

Hafiz

I am a waiter



Page 120



If money, haw much ang how do you receive it?

Who pays you?

Do you pay income tax or have a National Insurance
number?

What day do you get paid?

Pre-employment Checks

What name does the employer know you
as?

Did you show
docurnents befare being offered the job? If so, what?

Additional Questions

Wha else vorks here?

Photographs

In waiters outfit

Declaration

Interviewoe
glgnature

Page 121

Cash
in hand. Free accommodation upstans
Depends

on how many hours I work Between £150-£160
hand,

Hafiz the manager,

I don’t know.

Sunday

night.

He calls me He knows my name

1 showed him my dnving kicence. [ dont know if ;
him anything else.

Everyone here this evening

Exhibit Ref | sHo1
Photo
Common name of subject

&)



Page 122



Observations

Obsersvabons

Page 123

20-03-2%19
1918 21



Page 124



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE (when completed)

MG b

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, 5.9
Statementof e, URN:
Age ifunder 18 Over 18............... (if aver 18 insert ‘over 18) Occupation: Immigration Officer ...

.This statement (consisting of: ...3 ..... pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, 1 shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: Date: 15 December 2019 ..............
Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear)
| am a warranted Immigration Officer based at Portishead collar number On Friday 20%

September 2019 | tasked along with 9 other immigration officers to carry out an immigration
visit to an Indian restaurant called Tale of Spice, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham Wiltshire
SN15 1QA. Our visit was to identify suspected immigration offenders alledged to be illegally
working. All the first notes made were recorded electronically at the time of the visit on my
Home Office Samasung device using encrypted electronic notebook software called Pronto.

Prior to the visit we carried out a briefing led by Officer who was
declared officer in charge of the visit. We arrived at approximately 18:16hrs and | was tasked
to assist with encounters inside the restaurant main area, entering under authority of section
179 of the Licensing Act 2003 as authorised my Assistant Director prior to the
visit.

Once entered there were a number of males appearing to be working in smart uniform and |
spoke to (born ) who appeared to be working in the kitchen, dressed
smartly like a waitor. | introduced myself as an Immigration Officer, showing my warrant card
and asked if he understood what | was saying and was he happy to me to speak English and
he replied “YES".

After confirming his identity, | carried out immigration checks which revealed to be
someone who had stayed in the UK beyond his permitted leave and as such was someone
who had over-stayed his leave to remain in the UK. Checks also showed that he had
previously been served as an over-stayer on 23.08.16 and his appeal rights were exhausted
15.07.19. He also had an outstanding asylum claim and in any case had no permission to
work. At 19:26hrs | arrested under Schedule 2 Paragraph 17(1) of the Immigration Act
1971 as amended to facilitate his removal from the UK.

| asked ihe following questions regarding his employment and my observations about
his reason for being in the kitchen.

Signature: Signature witnessed by:

Page 125

102017 MG 1




Page 126



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE - (when completed) C

Page 2 of 3

Continuation of Statement of

Q: HOW LONG HAVE YOU WORKED HERE?
A: JUST LESS THAN A MONTH

Q: WHAT IS YOUR JOB ROLE/ YOUR DUTIES?
A: | HELP BEING A CHEF.

Q: WHAT DAYS & HOURS DO YOU WORK EACH WEEK?
A: WHEN BUSY BUT MAYBE UP TO BUT LESS THAN AN HOUR.

Q: DO YOU WORK THE SAME HOURS / DAYS EVERY WEEK?

A: WHEN THEY ARE BUSY BUT GENERALLY THURSDAY, FRIDAY & SATURDAY BUT
NOT GUARENTEED.

Q: WHAT DOCUMENTS DID YOU SHOW YOUR BOSS ABOUT YOUR IDENTITY WHEN
YOU STARTED?

A: | KNOW THE BOSS SO | DIDN'T SHOW HIM ANY DOCUMENTS.

Q: HOW DIO YOU GET PAID?
A: | GET FREE FOOD AND SOMETIMES £10 OR £15, WHEN | COME IN FOR 2 DAYS.

Q: WHO GAVE YOU THIS JOB?
A: THE MANAGER HAFIZ

Q: WHO TELL YOU WHAT THE DUTIES ARE EACH DAY?
A: THE SENIOR PERSON

Q: DO YOU PAY INCOME TAX OR HAVE AN NATIONAL INSURANCE NUMBER?
A: NO

Q: WHAT NAME DOES YOUR EMPLOYER KNOW YOU AS?
A:

Q: YOU ARE DRESSED IN A SMART SHIRT AND SHOES, WERE YOU GOING TO BE
SERVING FOOD TONIGHT?
A: NO

Q: WHEN | ENTERED THE KITCHEN | SAW YOU DOING THINGS WITH OTHERS
COOKING, WHAT WERE YOU DOING?
A: FETCHING THINGS FOR THE CHEF AND WASHING UP IF THEY NEED HELP.

then read through the questions and answers | had recorded above and signed under
those answers with his signature which was permanently recorded and time stamped on my
electronic Pocket Notebook in Pronto.

Signature: e Signature witnessed by:

s Page 127

............................................................



Page 128



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE - (when completed) .!

Page 3 of 3

Continuation 0f SEAEMENt OF et ae st r e e e vaannatreaaaararraararraian

was then conveyed to Melksham Police Custody where he was served immigration
papers informing him that he is liable for removal and his detention was authorised.

SIgRature: e Signature witnessed BY: oot

197017 Page 129



Page 130



Witness contact details URN: 7 [/

NAME Of WIlN S S oo e

Home address: c/o Home Office, Portishead, Somerset...........oc.cceceveevevvcernivnnnnn.. Postcode:
Email address: @homeoffice.gov.uk.......... Mabile: e
Home telephone numberin/a.........c..ocooveivvciceecvincnan. Work telephone number:.............c. coocoeiiveevnern,

Gender:...Male................. Date and place of birth:
Former name: Ethnicity Code (16 + 1): ..o st eeee et e ers s eee s
DATES OF WITNESS NON-AVAILABILITY: ..ottt e e et e et e e

Witness care
a) Is the witness willing to attend court? Yes 2] No [:] If ‘No’, include reason(s) on form MG6.
b) What can be done t0 ensuUre attendanC? .........c.cccviiviriieieeeeciee e e ee s es oot ee s e e s et s

c) Does the witness require a Special Measures Assessment as a vulnerable or intimidated witness? {youth
under 18; witness with mental disorder, learning or physical disability; or witness in fear of giving evidence ar witness is
the complainant in a sexual offence case)

Yes L—_] No If 'Yes', submit MG2 with file in anticipated not guilty, contested or indictable only cases.

d) Does the witness have any particular needs? Yes D No D If 'Yes', what are they? (Disability, healthcare,
childcare, transport, language difficulties, visually impaired, restricted mobility or other concerns?)

Witness Consent (for witness completion)
a) The Victim Personal Statement scheme (victims only) has been explained to me:  Y€s L N X
b) | have been given the Victim Personal Statement leaflet Yes X No[]

¢) | have been given the leaflet “Giving a witness statement to the Home Office...." Yes No (]

d) | consent to police having access to my medical record(s) in relation to this Yes[] No[O NA[X
matter (obtained in accordance with local practice)

e) | consent to my medical record in relation to this matter being disclosed to the Yes[] No[O0 NANK
defence:

f) 1 consent to the statement being disclosed for the purposes of civil proceedings Yes (] No[J NA
if applicable, e.g. child care proceedings, CICA

g) Child witness cases only. | have had the provision regarding reporting
restrictions explained to me. Yes[l Nol] NAK
I would like the CPS to apply for reporting restrictions on my behalf. Yes[] No[J] NAK

| understand that the information recorded above will be passed on to the Witness
Service, which offers help and support to witnesses pre-trial and at court,

Signature of witness: L. PRINT NAME: Gregory Doyle...........ccccoovveeervveeenn.,

Signature of parent/guardian/appropriate adult: ..........co.ccooveeveeveeeeeeerer . PRINT NAME: .....c..coevvivreen

Statement taken by (print name): - Station: e

Time and place StAtEMEBNE EEKEN: ...cc...o. oottt e e e e,

j. """ T E.q :lv ﬂ ? i :, =: ¥ _ ._.::’ ;3 tﬁ?h%gn ﬂu: fwdf-:] ,Q"'\a"'ja E({]“‘lﬁp

CEECIE

Sl .



Page 132



@

Immigration
Enforcement S

WITNESS STATEMENT

(Criminal Justice Act 1967 s.9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, ss.5A (3)(a) and 5B; Magistrates’ Courts Rules 1981 r.70)

URN G o ol s

Statement of |G

Age if under 18 OVER 18 (if over insert ‘over 18’) Occupation IMMIGRATION OFFICER

This statement (consisting of 1 page(s), each signed by me}) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated
anything in it, which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature Date 18/11/2019
Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear)

I am Immigration Officer | I currently attached to the Bristol Enforcement Unit, Conference
House, Conference Avenue, Portishead, Bristol, BS20 7LZ.

On 20/09 /2019, | was on an Enforcement Visit tasked to attend TALE OF SPICE, MALMESBURY ROAD,

CHIPPENHAM, WILTSHIRE. It was an intelligence led visit for illegal worklng On the team were
Imm|cI;rat|on officers | Gz IR i -(J [ Bl Ne

was the overall OIC for the multu property operatlon My role was OIC for this address and entry was
under Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2004. Also present was an officer from licensing.

At 18:15 the team arrived at the property. As | got out of the car a female ran back inside the address dropping
the bags she was holding. Officers deployed as instructed in the briefing. 2 males ran out onto the flat roof at
the back and were located and detained. | entered through the front door and explained our power of entry and
the purpose of our visit to the male who identified himself as the manager with the details Mr Hafizur
RAHAMAN. All 9 staff present were identified by team and 7 were established as working illegally. 6 were
arrested and taken to custody.

At 20:05 | served the CPCT referral to the manager Mr RAHAMAN.
The arresting officers conducted relvent searches and the team left the property to convey to custody at 20.39.

Signature: Signature witnessed by:  Self

ETAL Page 133



Page 134



Wiltshire Council

~——-_ Where everybody matters

24" September 2019 Public Protection Services
Licensing Team
Wiltshire Council

Mr MD H Rahaman Bythesea Road
Tale of Spice Trowbridge
Malmesbury Road Wiltshire
Chippenham BA14 8JN
Wiltshire

SN15 1QA

Our ref: LN/3324

Dear Mr Rahaman,

RE: Licensing Act 2003 — Formal Warning
Breach of Premises Licence - Tale of Spice, Malmesbury Road, Chippenham, SN15 1QA

| refer to my accompanied visit on Friday 20" September 2019 with the Home Office Immigration
Enforcement Officers. During the visit we discussed various sections of the Licence which were
not being met.

e Section 57: (2) The holder of the premises licence must secure that the licence, or a
certified copy of it and a list of any relevant mandatory conditions applicable to the
licence are kept at the premises. (3) The holder of the premises licence must
secure that (a) the summary of the licence or a certified copy of that summary are
prominently displayed at the premises.

At the time of inspection there was no Licence Summary on display and you could not find
the Premises Licence on site. | advised that both of these are a requirement under the
Licensing Act 2003.

e Section 33: The holder of a premises licence must, as soon as is reasonably
practicable, notify the relevant licencing authority of any change in his name or
address.

During the inspection you informed me the address we have on the licence is no longer
your current address and has not been for some time. If you have not already completed,
please urgently apply for a change of address. See application form enclosed.

e Itis a mandatory licence condition that 125ML measures are displayed in a menu, price list
or other printed material which is available to customers on the premises, at such time this
wasn’t available.

I must take this opportunity to remind you that the licensing objective, Prevention of Crime
and Disorder, includes the prevention of immigration crime including illegal working in
licensed premises. The Home Office Immigration Enforcement is a responsible authority under
the Licensing Act 2003, with effect from 6 April 2017. Further action may be taken concerning the
Premises Licence, based on the outcome of the Home Office Immigration Enforcement team.

Page 135

Telephone: 0300 456 0100 ¢ Textphone: 01225 712500 ¢ Web: www.wiltshire.gov.uk




Wiltshire Council

~——-_ Where everybody matters

Itis a legal requirement that all the terms of the Premises Licence are strictly complied with. The
maximum penalty for conviction of offences under the Licensing Act 2003 is an unlimited fine
and/or 6 months imprisonment.

You must ensure that the above matters are completed as a matter of urgency. Please contact us
to acknowledge receipt of this letter and of the actions you have taken. Thank you.

Yours sincerely,

Emma Batchelor

Public Protection Officer — Licensing

Tel: 01249 706555

Email: publicprotectionnorth@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 136

Telephone: 0300 456 0100 ¢ Textphone: 01225 712500 ¢ Web: www.wiltshire.gov.uk




	Agenda
	3 Procedure for the Meeting
	7 Licensing Application
	7a Appendix 1 - Current Premises Licence
	7b Appendix 2 - Location Plan
	7c Appendix 3a - Application for a Review of a Premises Licence
	7d Appendix 3b - Evidence submitted by Home Office (Immigration Enforcement)
	Appendix 3b Evidence 2 of 2

	7e Appendix 4 - Letter from Licensing Officer following accompanied Immigration visit



